
 
Council Agenda 
September 1, 2020 

 

 
Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh Council will meet in regular session on the 1st day of                                                                                                                                                        
September 2020, at 9:00 a.m. through Zoom, an online video conferencing platform. 
 
This meeting is being held electronically as per By-Law #52-2020, Section 3.10 which allows for 
Electronic Participation of Council Meetings.  
 
1.0     CALL TO ORDER 
 
 Video/Audio Approval – if applicable 
 
2.0 DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST / POTENTIAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
 
 
3.0 ADOPTION OF PREVIOUS MEETING MINUTES  
 
3.1 Council Meeting Minutes – August 11, 2020 
 
  Moved by 

Seconded by  
 
ADOPT 
COUNCIL 
MINUTES 

  
THAT Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh Township Council hereby adopts the 
August 11, 2020 Council Meeting Minutes as written.  

   
 
4.0 OPEN FORUM (items pertaining to the agenda) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

mark
Typewritten Text
AGENDA

mark
Typewritten Text



2 
 

5.0 DELEGATIONS 
 
5.1 9:00 a.m. – Celina Whaling-Rae / County of Huron Planner  

 
A) Jason & Julie Otten Zoning By-Law Amendment Application #Z02-20  

 
B) The Andersons Canada Ltd. (IBI Group) Zoning By-Law Amendment  

Application #Z03-20  
 
  Moved by            

Seconded by  
 
ADJOURN 
COUNCIL 
MEETING  

 
 
 

 
THAT Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh Township Council hereby adjourns 
their regular Council Meeting.  

 
  Moved by           

Seconded by  
 
OPEN 
PUBLIC 
MEETING 

 
 

 
THAT Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh Township Council hereby opens the 
Planning Advisory Committee Public Meeting to deal with Zoning By-Law 
Amendment Applications received from Jason/Julie Otten, and the 
Andersons Canada Ltd. (IBI Group). 

   
   

A) Jason & Julie Otten Zoning By-Law Amendment Application #Z02-20  
 
We have provided Council with the report prepared by the County Planner, Celina Whaling-Rae, 
in regards to this Zoning By-Law Amendment.  Ms. Whaling-Rae will review the application with 
the Planning Advisory Committee. 

 
TOWNSHIP OF ASHFIELD-COLBORNE-WAWANOSH PLANNING ADVISORY 

COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

Call to order 
 
 
 

Declaration of Pecuniary Interests 
 
 
 

Purpose 
 
The purpose of this Public Meeting is to consider changing the zoning on the property at 
Concession Maitland, Part Lot 29, (Colborne Ward) in the Township of Ashfield-
Colborne-Wawanosh.  
 
Requirement 
 
This Public Meeting is being held under The Planning Act, which requires that Council 
hold at least one Public Meeting and that proper notice be given. 
 
 
 
 



3 
 

 

Application Process 
 
An application was submitted by Jason and Julie Otten to the Township of Ashfield-
Colborne-Wawanosh and considered complete on July 20, 2020. 
 
Notice of the Public Meeting was mailed by the municipality to all property owners within 
400 feet of the property on August 12, 2020 and notice was posted on the subject 
property. 
 

Comments: 
 

1)   Huron County Planner 
2)   Applicant and/or Agent 
3)   Others 
4)   Council’s Questions and/or Comments. 

 

NOTE: If a person or public body that files an appeal of a decision of ACW Township in 
respect to the proposed rezoning, but does not make written or oral submissions 
before the proposed rezoning is adopted, the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal 
(LPAT) may dismiss all or part of the appeal. 

 
Zoning By-law Procedure Following Public Meeting 
 
• This is a Public Meeting, not a Council Meeting; therefore, a decision of Council may 

or may not be made later this morning. 
• If the By-law is passed, the Clerk must send Notice of the Passing of the By-law to all 

persons notified of this meeting and to any person or public body that has requested 
it. 

• There is a 20-day objection period from the time Notice of Passing has been mailed, 
where submissions will be received by the Clerk. 

• If an objection is received, an appeal is lodged with the Local Planning Appeal 
Tribunal (LPAT) and the Municipality no longer has jurisdiction of the file and/or the 
processing time. You may only file an appeal if you have submitted oral or written 
comments prior to the decision of Council. 

• The fee for filing an appeal is $300.00 payable by Certified Cheque or Money Order 
in Canadian funds, made out to the Minister of Finance, and must be accompanied 
by Appellant Form (A1). 

• If Council does not pass the by-law, the applicant may appeal to the LPAT. 
• If the By-law is passed and no objections are received within the 20-day appeal 

period, the Clerk will certify that the By-law is in force and effect as of the date of its 
passing and Notice is forwarded to the Planning Department and to the applicant. 

 

Recommendation of the Huron County Planner 
 
It is recommended that Zoning By-Law Amendment Application #Z02-20 be approved. 
 



4 
 

Recommendation of the Planning Advisory Committee 

 

 

Effect of Public and Agency Comments on Decision of Council to the Application 
 
 
 

B) The Andersons Canada Ltd. (IBI Group) Zoning By-Law Amendment  
Application #Z03-20  

 
We have provided Council with the report prepared by the County Planner, Celina Whaling-Rae, 
in regards to this Zoning By-Law Amendment.  Ms. Whaling-Rae will review the application with 
the Planning Advisory Committee. 

 
TOWNSHIP OF ASHFIELD-COLBORNE-WAWANOSH PLANNING ADVISORY 

COMMITTEE MEETING 
 

Call to order 
 
 
 

Declaration of Pecuniary Interests 
 
 
 

Purpose 
 
The purpose of this Public Meeting is to consider changing the zoning on a portion of the 
property at 35441 Dungannon Road, Part of Lot 3, Concession 4 WD of Part of Road 
Allowance Between Lots 3 & 4 (Ashfield Ward) in the Township of Ashfield-Colborne-
Wawanosh.  
 
Requirement 
 
This Public Meeting is being held under The Planning Act, which requires that Council 
hold at least one Public Meeting and that proper notice be given. 
 

Application Process 
 
An application was submitted by Roman Miller to the Township of Ashfield-Colborne-
Wawanosh and considered complete on July 20, 2020. 
 
Notice of the Public Meeting was mailed by the municipality to all property owners within 
400 feet of the property on August 5, 2020 and notice was posted on the subject 
property. 
 

Comments: 
 

1)   Huron County Planner 
2)   Applicant and/or Agent 
3)   Others 
4)   Council’s Questions and/or Comments. 

 



5 
 

NOTE: If a person or public body that files an appeal of a decision of ACW Township in 
respect to the proposed rezoning, but does not make written or oral submissions 
before the proposed rezoning is adopted, the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal 
(LPAT) may dismiss all or part of the appeal. 

 
Zoning By-law Procedure Following Public Meeting 
 
• This is a Public Meeting, not a Council Meeting; therefore, a decision of Council may 

or may not be made later this morning. 
• If the By-law is passed, the Clerk must send Notice of the Passing of the By-law to all 

persons notified of this meeting and to any person or public body that has requested 
it. 

• There is a 20-day objection period from the time Notice of Passing has been mailed, 
where submissions will be received by the Clerk. 

• If an objection is received, an appeal is lodged with the Local Planning Appeal 
Tribunal (LPAT) and the Municipality no longer has jurisdiction of the file and/or the 
processing time. You may only file an appeal if you have submitted oral or written 
comments prior to the decision of Council. 

• The fee for filing an appeal is $300.00 payable by Certified Cheque or Money Order 
in Canadian funds, made out to the Minister of Finance, and must be accompanied 
by Appellant Form (A1). 

• If Council does not pass the by-law, the applicant may appeal to the LPAT. 
• If the By-law is passed and no objections are received within the 20-day appeal 

period, the Clerk will certify that the By-law is in force and effect as of the date of its 
passing and Notice is forwarded to the Planning Department and to the applicant. 

 

Recommendation of the Huron County Planner 
 
It is recommended that Zoning By-law Amendment Application #Z03-20 be approved.  
 

Recommendation of the Planning Advisory Committee 

 

 

Effect of Public and Agency Comments on Decision of Council to the Application 
 
 
 

Adjournment 
 
That there being no further business, the Public Meeting be hereby closed at 
____________ a.m. 
 
  Moved by                   

Seconded by  
 
CLOSE 
PUBLIC 
MEETING 

 
 

 
THAT Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh Township Council hereby closes the 
Planning Advisory Committee Public Meeting.  

  
 
 
 
 



6 
 

  Moved by           
Seconded by  

 
RECONVENCE 
COUNCIL 
MEETING 

 
 
 

 
THAT Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh Township Council hereby 
reconvenes their regular Council Meeting. 

 
 
5.2 9:30 a.m. – Celina Whaling-Rae / County of Huron Planner - Consent Application 
 
 The Andersons Canada Limited - Consent File #C50/20 

 
We have provided Council with a copy of the report prepared by Celina Whaling-Rae  
in regard to the application for consent received from The Andersons Canada Limited. 
Ms. Whaling-Rae will review the application with Council.  
 
STAFF COMMENTS:  We seek your direction.  
 

5.3 9:45 a.m. – Celina Whaling-Rae / County of Huron Planner – Minor Variance 
 

Darcy Quinlan - Minor Variance Application File #MV08/20 
 

 
We have provided Council with a copy of the report prepared by the County Planner, 
Celina Whaling-Rae, in regard to this application.  Ms. Whaling-Rae will review the 
application with the Committee of Adjustment.    

 
STAFF COMMENTS:  That this application for minor variance be approved subject to the 
following conditions: 

• That the structure be located within the footprint contained on the site plan that 
  accompanied the application. 

• That the structure be constructed as shown in the elevation drawing that 
accompanied the application. 

• That the variances’ approval be valid for a period of 18 months from the date of 
the Committee’s decision. 
 

 PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

 

 

 APPLICANT COMMENTS: 

 

 

 

 

  Moved by                    
Seconded by     

 
OPEN 
COMMITTEE 
OF 
ADJUSTMENT 
MEETING 

  
THAT Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh Council hereby adjourns the 
regular Council Meeting and hereby opens their Committee of Adjustment 
Meeting and Hearing to review the Darcy Quinlan Minor Variance 
Application.  



7 
 

 

 

 

 Moved by                  
Seconded by     

 
APPROVE 
QUINLAN 
APPLICATION 

 
 

 
THAT Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh Committee of Adjustment hereby 
agrees to approve the Darcy Quinlan Minor Variance Application as 
submitted, subject to the conditions as noted in the Planner’s Report. 
 

 
Effect of Public and Agency Comments on Decision of Council to the Application 

 
 
  
  Moved by                    

Seconded by      
 
CLOSE 
COMMITTEE 
OF 
ADJUSTMENT 

 
 
 

 
THAT Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh Committee of Adjustment hereby 
closes their meeting. 

 

 
  Moved by                 

Seconded by     
 
RECONVENCE 
REGULAR 
COUNCIL 
MEETING 

 
 
 

 
THAT Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh Township Council hereby 
reconvenes the regular Council Meeting of September 1, 2020. 

 
 

 
 
6.0 ACCOUNTS 
 
 No items scheduled. 
 
7.0 DEPARTMENT / COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
7.1 Water Department 
 
7.1.1     Water Operations & Maintenance Report – June 2020 
 

We have provided Council with a copy of the report prepared by Veolia Water Canada 
regarding the operation and maintenance of our water systems for June 2020. 
 
STAFF COMMENTS:  For your information purposes. 
 

7.1.2 Benmiller Drinking Water System – Ministry of the Environment Inspection Report 
 
 We have provided Council with a copy of the Benmiller Drinking Water System Inspection 
 Report. 
 
 STAFF COMMENTS:  For your information purposes.  
 
 
 
 



8 
 

7.1.3 Dungannon Arsenic Treatment – Update 
 
 We have provided Council with a copy of the memo received from B.M. Ross & 
 Associates with respect to the two potential approaches to consider for the treatment of 
 arsenic. 
 
 STAFF COMMENTS:  That Council agree to proceed with the “Cartridge Filter” proposal 
 when preparing the detailed design of the system. 
 
7.2 Building Department 
 
7.2.1 Wilkins Blake Heritage Farms - Temporary Dwelling Agreement 
 
 We have provided Council with a copy of an Agreement signed by Matthew Wilkins
 for Council’s consideration. Where permitted in the zoning by-law, those wishing  to 
 construct or bring in a temporary dwelling must enter into an agreement with the 
 municipality outlining conditions such as the installation, period of occupancy, and 
 development standards. Chief Building Official Brett Pollock will be available this 
 morning.  
  
 STAFF COMMENTS:  If Council agrees to proceed, the agreement will need to be 
 adopted by by-law in Section 14. 
 
7.3 Cemetery Department 
 
 No items scheduled. 
 
7.4 Drainage Department 
 
7.4.1 Warren Zinn Municipal Drain 2020 – Tenders  
 

We have provided Council with a copy of the report prepared by Clerk Florence 
Witherspoon.  Ms. Witherspoon will be available this morning.  

 
STAFF COMMENTS:  That Council accepts the tender for the construction of the Warren 
Zinn Municipal Drain 2020 and adopts the following resolution.  

 

  Moved by  
Seconded by   

WARREN 
ZINN DRAIN 
TENDER 
ACCEPT 

 THAT Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh Township Council hereby 
accepts the tender submitted by Robinson Farm Drainage Ltd. for 
the construction of the Wilkins Municipal Drain 2020 in the amount of 
$265,975 plus H.S.T. 

 
7.4.2 Warren Zinn Municipal Drain 2020 – Court of Revision Minutes 
 

We have provided Council with the minutes of the Warren Zinn Municipal Drain Court of 
Revision Minutes of August 10, 2020. 

 
STAFF COMMENTS:  For your information only.  
 
 
 
 
 
 



9 
 

 
7.4.3 Warren Zinn Municipal Drain 2020  
 

We have provided Council with a copy of the Provisional By-law for the Warren Zinn 
Municipal Drain which is ready to receive third reading. The Engineer’s Report was 
accepted by Council on July 14th, the Court of Revision was held on August 10th where 
the assessment schedule was confirmed, and the last day for filing an appeal to the 
Tribunal related to this drain was August 30th.  Construction can commence any time 
after the provisional by-law has been finally adopted. 
 
STAFF COMMENTS:  That Council give third and final reading to the by-law.  

 
7.5 Administration Department 
 
7.5.1 Lucknow Recreation – Appointment of Facility Operator & Parks Maintainer  
 
 The Lucknow & District Recreation Department have hired Tanner Stevenson as Facility 
 Operator & Parks Maintainer in light of a recent resignation.  We have provided Council 
 with a copy of the appointing by-law.  
 
 STAFF COMMENTS:  That Council adopt the by-law in Section 14. 
 
7.5.2 Enabling Accessibility Fund (EAF) Project Application – Municipal Office  
 
 We have provided Council with a copy of the report prepared by Treasurer Ellen 
 McManus with respect to the successful application of the above noted fund.   
 Ms. McManus will be available this morning. 
 
 STAFF COMMENTS:  For your information purposes.  
 
7.6 Public Works Department 
 
7.6.1 Public Works Activity Report 
  

We have provided Council with a copy of the report prepared by Public Works 
Superintendent Brian Van Osch.  Mr. Van Osch will be available this morning.  
  
STAFF COMMENTS:  For your information purposes. 

 
7.7 Environmental Services 
 
 No items scheduled. 
 
7.8 Committee Reports 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



10 
 

8.0 NEW BUSINESS 
 
8.1 Ministry of Municipal Affairs and Housing – Safe Restart Agreement 
 
 We have provided a copy of the letter indicating that under this agreement the Municipal 
 Operating Funding Phase 1:  Immediate Funding for Municipal Pressures that the 
 Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh will receive a payment of $189,100 to support 
 the COVID-19 operating costs and pressures. 
 
 STAFF COMMENTS:  Once more details are released staff will bring back a report.  
 
8.2 St. Helens Hall Board  
 
 We have provided Council with a copy of the request from Chairperson Barb Snowden of 
 the St. Helens Hall Board with respect to the following: 
 

a) St. Helens Cenotaph 
 
We have provided a copy of the quotation received as well as pictures of the existing 
cenotaph which they are requesting that Council authorize paying for this repair work. 
 
STAFF COMMENTS:  We seek your direction. 
 

  Moved by  
Seconded by  
  

ACCEPT 
CENOTAPH 
QUOTE 

 THAT Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh Township Council hereby 
accepts the quote submitted by Stothers Bricklaying for the cenotaph 
repairs at the St. Helens Hall in the amount of $ 2,200 plus HST. 

 
b) St. Helens Playground Equipment 

 
We have provided Council with a copy of the proposed playground equipment for the 
St. Helens Hall which they are requesting that Council authorize to provide seed 
money, if needed, when the project begins.   
 
STAFF COMMENTS:  We seek your direction. 

 
9.0 CORRESPONDENCE / DIRECTION REQUIRED 
 
9.1 CIAO Internet / Improving Connectivity for Ontario Program – Letter of Interest 
 
 We have provided the correspondence received with respect to their request of a letter of 

interest from the municipality. 
 
 STAFF COMMENTS:  We seek your direction. 
 
10.0 CORRESPONDENCE / FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES 
 
10.1 Port Albert & District Recreation Society (Petrie Park) – Minutes 
10.2 Port Albert & District Recreation Society (Petrie Park) – September 2020 Update 
10.3 Township of Huron-Kinloss Resolution – Farm Property Tax Class Rate Program 
10.4 Lucknow & District Joint Fire Board - Minutes 
 
 
 



11 
 

11.0 CORRESPONDENCE / ON COUNCIL TABLE 
 
 No items scheduled. 
 
12.0 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
12.1 Lake Huron Conference – Is the Coast Clear? – Starting September 29th (6-week Virtual) 
 
 Mayor McNeil and Deputy Mayor Watt participating. 
 
 STAFF COMMENTS:  Reminder only. 
 
12.2 Official Plan Preliminary Review 
 

Staff is ready to proceed with a follow-up meeting with Council to finalize items to be 
considered in the upcoming Official Plan Review.  What date and time would suit Council 
to meet? 

 
 STAFF COMMENTS:  We seek your direction.  
 
13.0 IN-CAMERA / CLOSED SESSION 
 

No items scheduled. 
 
14.0 BY-LAWS 
 
14.1 Facility Operator & Parks Maintainer Appointment By-Law 
 
  Moved by  

Seconded by  
 
FACILITY 
OPERATOR 
PARKS 
MAINTAINE
R 
APPOINTME
NT BY-LAW 

  
THAT leave be given to introduce By-Law #54-2020 being a by-law to 
appoint a Facility Operator & Parks Maintainer for the Lucknow & District 
Joint Recreation Board, and that it now be read severally a first, second, 
and third time, and finally passed this 1st day of September 2020. 

 
14.2 Otten Zoning By-Law Amendment 
 
  Moved by  

Seconded by  
 
ZONING 
AMENDMEN
T BY-LAW 

  
THAT leave be given to introduce By-Law #57-2020 being a by-law to 
amend zoning by-law #32-2008 as amended for the Township of Ashfield-
Colborne-Wawanosh, and that it now be read severally a first, second, and 
third time, and finally passed this 1st day of September 2020. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



12 
 

14.3 Anderson Zoning By-Law Amendment 
 
  Moved by  

Seconded by  
 
ZONING 
AMENDMEN
T BY-LAW 

  
THAT leave be given to introduce By-Law #58-2020 being a by-law to 
amend zoning by-law #32-2008 as amended for the Township of Ashfield-
Colborne-Wawanosh, and that it now be read severally a first, second, and 
third time, and finally passed this 1st day of September 2020. 

 
14.4 Wilkins Blake Heritage Farms - Temporary Dwelling Agreement 
 
  Moved by  

Seconded by  
 
TEMPORAR
Y 
DWELLING 
AMENDMEN
T 

  
THAT leave be given to introduce By-Law #56-2020 being a by-law to 
authorize a temporary dwelling agreement between Wilkins Blake Heritage 
Farms and the Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh, and that it now 
be read severally a first, second, and third time, and finally passed this 1st 
day of September 2020. 

 
14.5 Warren Zinn Municipal Drain 2020 
 
  Moved by           

Seconded by  
 
WARREN 
ZINN 
MUNICIPAL 
DRAIN 2020 
BY-LAW 

 
 
 

 
THAT leave be given to introduce By-Law #45-2020 being a by-law to 
provide for the construction of the Warren Zinn Municipal Drain 2020, and 
that it now be read severally a third time, and finally passed this 1st day of 
September 2020. 

 
14.6 Confirmation By-Law 
 
  Moved by  

Seconded by  
 
CONFIRMAT
ION BY-LAW 

  
THAT leave be given to introduce By-Law #55-2020 being a by-law to 
confirm the proceedings of the Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh 
meeting held on September 1, 2020, and that it now be read severally a 
first, second, and third time, and finally passed this 1st day of September 
2020. 

  ~ 
15.0 ADJOURNMENT 
 
  Moved by  

Seconded by  
 
ADJOURN 

  
THAT Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh Township Council does now adjourn 
to meet again on September 15, 2020 at 9:00 a.m. or at the Call of the 
Mayor. 

  ~ 

 



 
Council Minutes 

August 11, 2020 
 

 
Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh Council met in regular session on the 11th day of                                                                                                                                                        
August 2020, at 9:00 a.m. through Zoom, a Video Conferencing Platform. 
 
This meeting was held electronically as the crisis of COVID-19 allows Councils to conduct their 
meetings remotely to empower municipalities to respond quickly and continue to function when 
in-person meetings cannot be held, and Council decisions need to be made. 
 
The following individuals were participants during the Council Meeting: 
 

Mayor     Glen McNeil 
Deputy Mayor    Roger Watt 
Councillors     Gloria Fisher 

Wayne Forster  
Jennifer Miltenburg 
Anita Snobelen 
Bill Vanstone 
     

  Staff Present  
 
  CAO/Deputy-Clerk   Mark Becker 
  Treasurer    Ellen McManus 
  Chief Building Official   Brett Pollock 
  Public Works Superintendent  Brian Van Osch 
  Clerk     Florence Witherspoon 
 
 OTHERS PRESENT VIA ZOOM (Viewing and Observing Only):  Anita Frayne, Maggie 
 Durnin, Kevin Foster, Dan Schmidt, Ian Montgomery, Jean Montgomery, Marilyn Kronas, 
 Nancy Bridge, and Celina Whaling-Rae. 
 
1.0     CALL TO ORDER 
 

The municipality will be recording this meeting to “ensure meetings can be open to the 
public”. 

 
1.1 Procedural By-Law Amendment 
 

The Province has made changes to the Municipal Act to allow members of councils, 
committees and certain local boards who participate in open and closed meetings 
electronically to be counted for purposes of quorum.  

 
 Please refer to the new Paragraph of 3.10. 
 
 STAFF COMMENTS:  That Council adopts the by-law as presented. 
 
 ACTION:  Council agreed to adopt the by-law as presented.  
 
  Moved by          Miltenburg  

Seconded by     Vanstone  
 
PROCEDUR
AL  
BY-LAW 

 
 
#1 

 
THAT leave be given to introduce By-Law #52-2020 being a Procedural  
By-Law to govern the proceedings and the conduct of the meetings of the 
Council and Committees of the Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh, 
and that it now be read severally a first, second, and third time, and finally 
passed this 11th day of August, 2020. 

Carried. 
 
2.0 DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST / POTENTIAL CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
 
 None disclosed. 
 

mark
Typewritten Text

mark
Typewritten Text
3.1

mark
Typewritten Text



2 
 

 
3.0 ADOPTION OF PREVIOUS MEETING MINUTES  
 
3.1 Council Meeting Minutes – July 14, 2020 
 
  Moved by          Miltenburg 

Seconded by     Watt  
 
ADOPT 
COUNCIL 
MINUTES 

 
#2 

 
THAT Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh Township Council hereby adopts the 
July 14, 2020 Council Meeting Minutes as written. 

Carried.  
   

3.2 Council Meeting Minutes – July 28, 2020 
 
  Moved by          Snobelen 

Seconded by     Forster  
 
ADOPT 
COUNCIL 
MINUTES 

 
#3 

 
THAT Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh Township Council hereby adopts the 
July 28, 2020 Council Meeting Minutes as written.  

Carried. 
 
4.0 OPEN FORUM (items pertaining to the agenda) 

 
Anita Frayne addressed Council with respect to Section 12.3. 
 

5.0 DELEGATIONS 
 
5.1 9:10 a.m. – Celina Whaling-Rae / County of Huron Planner - Consent Application 

 
 Foster – Consent File C49-2020 

 
We have provided Council with a copy of the report prepared by Celina Whaling-Rae  
in regards to the application for consent received from Kevin Foster.  Ms. Whaling-Rae 
reviewed the application with Council.  
 
STAFF COMMENTS:  We seek your direction. 
 
ACTION:  Council agreed to recommend to the County of Huron that this application for 
consent be approved subject to the conditions as outlined in the Planners Report.  

 
5.2 9:20 a.m. - Nancy Bridge / Seebach & Company Chartered Accountants 
 

We have provided Council with a copy of the Financial Statements for the year ending 
2019, from our auditor Seebach & Company Chartered Accountants.  We have also 
provided a two-page summary.  The Revenue/Expenditure Reports that Council receive 
each month, show the actuals, and are in greater detail.  These statements represent the 
“Consolidated Financial Statements” of the Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh.  
Ms. Bridge was available this morning. 
 
STAFF COMMENTS:  That Council accepts the financial statements as presented and 
adopts the following resolution. 
 
ACTION:  Council agreed to adopt the following resolution.  

 
  Moved by          Forster 

Seconded by     Fisher  
 
ACCEPT 
FINANCIAL 
STATEMENT
S 2019 

 
#4 

 
THAT Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh Township Council hereby accepts 
the Financial Statements as prepared by Seebach & Company Chartered 
Accountants for the year ending December 31, 2019. 

Carried. 
 
 
6.0 ACCOUNTS 
 
6.1 Payment of Current Accounts as Presented 
 
  Moved by          Vanstone 

Seconded by     Watt 
 
APPROVE  
ACCOUNTS 

 
#5 

 
THAT Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh Township Council hereby authorizes 
the payment of the August 2020 accounts as presented. 

Carried. 

   



3 
 

6.2 Payment of Previous Month Actual Accounts 
 
  Moved by          Fisher           

Seconded by     Miltenburg 
 
APPROVE 
ACTUAL  
PAYMENTS 

 
#6 

 
THAT Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh Township Council hereby approves 
the payment of the July 2020 accounts in the amount of $ 1,405,127.79. 

Carried. 
  ~ 

6.3 Summary Revenue/Expenditure Reports   
 
 Reports for the Township, Lucknow & District Fire Department, Lucknow & District  
             Medical Centre, and Lucknow & District Recreation from January to July 2020. 
  
  Moved by          Forster  

Seconded by     Snobelen  
 

REVENUE 
EXPEND- 
ITURE 
REPORT 

 
#7 

 
THAT Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh Township Council adopts the 
summary revenue/expenditure reports of the Treasurer as written. 

Carried. 

   
 
7.0 DEPARTMENT / COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
7.1 Water Department 
 
7.1.1 Century Heights UV Replacement / B.M. Ross & Associates  
 

We have provided a copy of the report prepared by Ryan DeVries of B.M. Ross & 
Associates.   

 
 STAFF COMMENTS:  We seek your direction.  
 
 ACTION:  Council agreed to proceed with the increase the Budget amount to $ 200,000 
 for the UV Replacement at Century Heights Water System.  
 
7.2 Building Department 
 
7.2.1 Chief Building Official’s Report 
 

We have provided Council with a copy of Mr. Pollock’s report.  Mr. Pollock was available 
this morning.  
 
STAFF COMMENTS:  For your information purposes. 
 
ACTION:  Noted and filed. 
 

7.2.2 Groener / Township Agreement 
 
 We have provided Council with a copy of the agreement between the Township and  
 Mr. Groener and a copy of the by-law to authorize the agreement. This agreement is 
 required due to the municipal office addition as the Ontario Building Code, Section 
 9.10.14.2 states that the required limiting distance for an exposing building face is 
 permitted to be measured to a point beyond the property line that is not the center 
 line of a street, land or public thoroughfare if,  
 (a) The owners of the properties on which the limiting distance is measured and the  
  municipality may enter into an agreement; 
 (b) The agreement agreed to in Clause (a) is registered against the title of the  
  properties to which it applies. 
 
 Brett Pollock, Chief Building Official was available this morning.  
 
 STAFF COMMENTS:  That Council authorizes the agreement by by-law in Section 14. 
 
 ACTION:  Council agreed to authorize the agreement by by-law in Section 14. 
 
7.3 Cemetery Department 
 
 No items scheduled.  
 
7.4 Drainage Department 
 
 No items scheduled.  
 



4 
 

7.5 Administration Department 
 
7.5.1 Fire Recovery of Costs By-law 
 

We have provided Council with a copy of the report prepared by Clerk Florence 
Witherspoon in this regard.  Ms. Witherspoon was available this morning.  
 
STAFF COMMENTS: That Council adopts the by-law in Section 14.  
 
ACTION:  Council agreed to adopt the by-law as drafted in Section 14. 
 

7.6 Public Works Department 
 
7.6.1 Public Works Activity Report 
  

We have provided Council with a copy of the report prepared by Public Works 
Superintendent Brian Van Osch.  Mr. Van Osch was available this morning.  
  
STAFF COMMENTS:  For your information purposes. 
 
ACTION:  Noted and filed. 

 
7.6.2 Equipment Operator / Labourer Appointment By-Law – Scott Rintoul 
 
 As a follow-up from our In-Camera Session on July 14th, the CAO/Deputy-Clerk and the 
 Public Works Superintendent reviewed the applications received, contacted those chosen 
 for interviews, performed the interviews, and proceeded to offer the position to the 
 successful applicant.  We are pleased to report that Scott Rintoul was offered and 
 accepted the position as Equipment Operator / Labourer.  We have provided Council with 
 a copy of the by-law appointing him to the Equipment Operator / Labourer position.    
 
 STAFF COMMENTS:  That Council adopts the by-law in Section 14. 
 
 ACTION:  Council agreed to adopt the by-law in Section 14. 
 
7.7 Environmental Services 
 
 No items scheduled. 
 
7.8 Committee Reports 
 
 Councillor Jennifer Miltenburg reported on the St. Helens Community Hall Committee. 
 
 Councillor Gloria Fisher reported on the Benmiller Community Hall.  
 
 Councillor Wayne Forster reported on the Lucknow Community Health Centre. 
 
 Mayor Glen McNeil reported that he had terminated the ACW State of Emergency on 
 July 31st. 
 
8.0 NEW BUSINESS 
 
 No items scheduled. 
 
9.0 CORRESPONDENCE / DIRECTION REQUIRED 
 
9.1 Huron County Food Distribution Centre – 2020 Gala / Donation Request 
 
 Council had budgeted $600 for the Gala with members attending.  
 
 STAFF COMMENTS:  We seek your direction.  
 
 ACTION:  Council agreed to donate the $600 to the Huron County Food Distribution 

Centre for 2020. 
 
9.2 Lucknow Community Centre Board – Request Financial Support 
 
 We have provided Council with a copy of their request. 
 
 STAFF COMMENTS:  We seek your direction. 
 
 ACTION:  Council agreed to have staff reach out to the group to see if they can access 

funds available through the Province of Ontario with respect to COVID Funding or other 
possible grants available such as Ontario Trillium Foundation.   

 



5 
 

 Staff will further request that they provide a copy of their finances and what are their 
plans moving forward financially and projected finances before Council would make any 
decision with respect to funding. 

 
 Staff will further reach out to the Township of Huron-Kinloss to ensure that we proceed in 

unison.  
 
9.3 Airbnb’s - Concerns from Huron Sands Residents  
 

a) We have provided copies of letters received regarding the problem of short-term 
rental properties. 

 
b) We have provided copies of letters received regarding the support of short-term 

rental properties.  
 
STAFF COMMENTS:  We seek your direction.  
 
ACTION:  Staff was instructed to bring back a report with respect to our existing Noise 
By-Law and review the existing fines along with any recommended changes to the fines. 
 
Council agreed to have Mayor Glen McNeil, with this assistance of staff, to prepare a 
press release with respect to the issues of short-term rental properties and that the 
residents have the Noise By-Law as a resource by contacting the O.P.P.  Staff will also 
provide the press release to the Ashfield Colborne Lakefront Association. 
 
Staff was instructed to bring back a report detailing options for Council for the control of 
short-term rental properties for Council’s consideration. 

 
10.0 CORRESPONDENCE / FOR INFORMATION PURPOSES 
 
10.1 Lucknow Community Health Centre Board – Minutes 
10.2 Western Ontario Wardens’ Caucus Media Release – Rural Broadband  
10.3 Township of North Huron – Fire Activity Report 
 
11.0 CORRESPONDENCE / ON COUNCIL TABLE 
 
 No items scheduled. 
 
12.0 UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
12.1 Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) Annual Conference – August 16-19th 2020 
 
 Councillors Fisher and Miltenburg participating virtually. 
 
 STAFF COMMENTS:  Reminder only. 
 
 ACTION:  Noted. 
 
12.2 Lake Huron Conference – Is the Coast Clear? – September 2-3rd 2020 
 
 Mayor McNeil and Deputy Mayor Watt attending. 
 
 STAFF COMMENTS:  Reminder only. 
 
 ACTION:  Noted.  
 
12.3 Carbon Tax Propane/Natural Gas Farm Use 
 
 We have provided Council with a copy of the letter reviewed at our last meeting which 

was submitted by Anita Frayne and Maggie Durnin.  As directed by Council, we have 
provided a copy of the revised draft resolution with respect to the federal carbon tax 
exemption on propane and natural gas for farm use.   

 
 For clarification, if Council proceeds to adopt the resolution, Council will have determined 

to take the lead on the issue.  This means that the Township will be requesting support 
from others of Council’s resolution.  

 
 STAFF COMMENTS:  We seek your direction. 
 
 ACTION:  Council agreed to adopt the following resolution.   
 
 
 
 
 



6 
 

  Moved by          Forster 
Seconded by     Watt 

 
CARBON TAX 
EXEMPTION 
FOR 
FARMERS 
USE 
PROPANE 
AND 
NATURAL 
GAS 

 
#8 

 
WHEREAS “Agriculture is one of the largest and most important sectors 
within Huron County. New employment and economic opportunities can 
be found within and related to the development of agriculture and Agri-
related industries. Huron County takes pride in being called the 
breadbasket of Ontario.  With over 290,000 hectares (about 650,000 
acres) of prime farmland, Huron County produces more annual gross farm 
receipts than many Canadian provinces.” (Huron County website) 
 
AND WHEREAS “Grain Farmers of Ontario is the province’s largest 
commodity organization, representing Ontario’s 28,000 barley, corn, oat, 
soybean and wheat farmers. The crops grown cover 6 million acres of 
farm land across the province, generate over $4.1 billion in farm gate 
receipts, result in over $18 billion in economic output and are responsible 
for over 75,000 jobs in the province.” (Grain Farmers of Ontario) 
 
AND WHEREAS “Canada is one of the largest agricultural producers and 
exporters in the world.” (Wikipedia) 
 
AND WHEREAS the “carbon tax” originates from the federal Greenhouse 
Gas Pollution Pricing Act which was passed in 2018. The fuel charge 
stemming from this act kicked in on April 1, 2019 in Ontario due to the 
provincial government’s scrapping of their “cap and trade” program in the 
autumn of 2017.  There has been a broad-based push-back from the 
farming community and beyond with respect to why this tax was 
implemented in the farm community in the first place. There has been a 
persistent call for the elimination of the carbon tax on all farm use fuels. To 
date there has been no relief with respect to the carbon tax on farm use 
propane and natural gas for grain drying, heating barns and crop irrigation. 
 
AND WHEREAS Senate Public Bill S-215 was brought forward early this 
spring by Senator Diane Griffin with calls for all Senators to support the 
Bill which would exempt propane and natural gas from the carbon tax. Bill 
C-206 was tabled by MPP Philip Lawrence and is similar in nature to Bill 
S-215.  Jeff Nielsen, Chair, Grain Growers of Canada, stated that, “Given 
the clear desire for this legislative change in both Chambers and across 
Party lines, our hope is that the federal government would include broader 
exemptions for all fuels used in farming operations in the Budget 
Implementation Act – once tabled. This is not about politics. This is about 
the sustainability of the family farm in Canada.”  (Grain Growers of 
Canada) 
 
AND WHEREAS what is at the heart of this exemption request is the 
recognition and understanding that farmers are primary producers and, for 
the most part, price takers and end users. They have no way to recoup 
this cost. Everyone in the chain above can recover the cost of the carbon 
tax paid by them by passing it on (i.e. billing the farmer for it) but farmers 
have no way to recoup this cost because they cannot set prices in a global 
market (but must try to remain competitive in that market). It is the reason 
why gasoline and diesel fuel for farm use have been exempted from 
carbon tax pricing.  The same logic should apply to farm use propane and 
natural gas.  Grain must be dried. Barns must be heated. Crops must be 
irrigated. These are not optional activities and, at the present time, there 
are no viable replacements for fossil fuels to dry the crops, heat the barns 
and irrigate the crops. 
  
AND WHEREAS to further complicate matters, greenhouses have been 
extended an exemption on the carbon tax on propane and natural gas for 
the exclusive purposes of heating greenhouses and/or generating carbon 
dioxide (CO2). These greenhouse purposes are 80% exempt. Partial relief 
of the fuel charge (i.e. 80%) applies to propane that is exclusively for use 
in the operation of a commercial greenhouse for growing any plants, 
including vegetables, fruits, bedding plants, cut flowers, ornamental plants, 
tree seedlings and medicinal plants.  In order for relief to be available, all 
or substantially all of the greenhouse building must be used for the 
growing of plants. 
 
AND WHEREAS our federal government continues to agree that the 
carbon tax plan for farmers will not change. Federal Minister of 
Agriculture, the Honourable Marie-Claude Bibeau, has stated that she 
does not have a business case to justify an exemption and that the carbon 
tax is not a significant factor 



7 
 

(https://www.realagriculture.com/2020/06/carbon-tax-on-grain-drying-fuel-
not-significant- enough-to-qualify-for-an-exemption-bibeau-says/). 
 
AND WHEREAS it is important to note that all farm use natural gas and 
propane is subject to the carbon tax – the carbon tax on grain drying at 
commercial dryer/elevator systems can and is being passed on to farmers 
and sits on their bottom line. 
 
THEREFORE LET IT BE RESOLVED that the Township of Ashfield-
Colborne-Wawanosh asks that the federal government of Canada (the 
Minister of Agriculture and Agri-Food Canada, the Honourable Marie-
Claude Bibeau, the Federal House of Commons Agriculture Committee, 
our Prime Minister, the Right Honourable Justin Trudeau) support the 
broad based call to exempt farmers from paying the carbon tax on farm 
use propane and natural gas. 
 
AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT a copy of this motion be sent to 
Lisa Thompson, MPP for Huron-Bruce, and Ben Lobb MP for Huron-
Bruce, 
 
AND BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this motion be sent to 
all lower tier municipalities in the County of Huron and the Western 
Ontario Wardens’ Caucus for their consideration. 

Carried. 
 
13.0 IN-CAMERA / CLOSED SESSION 
 
 No items scheduled.  
 
14.0 BY-LAWS 
 
14.1 Equipment Operator / Labourer Appointment By-Law (Scott Rintoul) 
 
  Moved by          Vanstone  

Seconded by     Snobelen  
 
EQUIPMENT 
OPERATEO
R 
LABOURER 
APPOINTME
NT BY-LAW 

 
#9 

 
THAT leave be given to introduce By-Law #53-2020 being a by-law to 
appoint Scott Rintoul as an Equipment Operator / Labourer, and that it now 
be read severally a first, second, and third time, and finally passed this 11th 
day of August 2020. 

Carried. 

 
14.2 Groener / Township Agreement By-Law 
 
  Moved by          Watt  

Seconded by     Miltenburg  
 
GROENER / 
TOWNSHIP 
AGREEMEN
T BY-LAW 

 
#10 

 
THAT leave be given to introduce By-Law #49-2020 being a by-law to 
authorize a certain between Hans Groener and the Township of Ashfield-
Colborne-Wawanosh, and that it now be read severally a first, second, and 
third time, and finally passed this 11th day of August 2020. 

Carried. 
 
14.3 Fire Recovery of Costs By-Law 
 
  Moved by          Forster  

Seconded by     Fisher  
 
FIRE 
RECOVERY 
OF COSTS 
BY-LAW 

 
#11 

 
THAT leave be given to introduce By-Law #51-2020 being a by-law to 
provide for the recovery of costs related to any action of a Fire Service 
within the Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh, and that it now be 
read severally a first, second, and third time, and finally passed this 11th 
day of August 2020. 

Carried. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



8 
 

14.4 Confirmation By-Law 
 
  Moved by          Miltenburg  

Seconded by     Watt  
 
CONFIRMAT
ION BY-LAW 

 
#12 

 
THAT leave be given to introduce By-Law #50-2020 being a by-law to 
confirm the proceedings of the Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh 
meeting held on August 11, 2020, and that it now be read severally a first, 
second, and third time, and finally passed this 11th day of August 2020. 

Carried. 
 
15.0 ADJOURNMENT 
 
  Moved by          Snobelen  

Seconded by     Vanstone  
 
ADJOURN 

 
#13 

 
THAT Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh Township Council does now adjourn 
to meet again on September 1, 2020 at 9:00 a.m. or at the Call of the 
Mayor. 

Carried. 
   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
________________                                              ___________________________________  
Mayor, Glen McNeil    CAO/Deputy-Clerk, Mark Becker 

 
 



PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
57 Napier Street, Goderich, Ontario N7A 1W2 CANADA 

Phone: 519.524.8394 Ext. 3 Fax: 519.524.5677   
Toll Free: 1.888.524.8394 Ext. 3 

www.huroncounty.ca 

  
 
To: Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh, Mayor, and Members of Council  
From: Celina Whaling-Rae, Planner 
Date: August 26, 2020 
 
Re: Zoning By-law Amendment Application Z02-20 
 Maitland Concession, Part Lot 29, Colborne, Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh, 

known municipally as 81003 River Line 
 

Owner/Applicant: Jason & Julie Otten 

This report is submitted to Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh (ACW) Council for the Council Meeting on 
September 1, 2020. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended that Zoning By-law Amendment Application Z02-20 be approved.  

 
PURPOSE  
The purpose and effect of the proposed Zoning By-law Amendment is to change the zoning on a portion of 
the subject property from ‘Natural Environment (NE1)’ to ‘Natural Environment – Special Zone – Holding 
(NE1-45-h)’ to allow a residence and accessory structures to be constructed.  
 
REVIEW 
The subject property is adjacent to the Maitland River. It is 50 acres in size, and is zoned ‘Natural 
Environment (NE1)’ with Conservation Authority Regulated Lands (CARL) in the ACW Zoning By-law (Zone 
Map 15). It is designated Natural Environment in the ACW Official Plan.  
 
The area of the property proposed for the zoning by-law amendment, as seen in Figure 1, is 1.38 acres. 
The NE1 zone does not permit the construction of buildings for residential purposes. The NE1-45 special 
zone proposes to permit a single detached residence and accessory buildings, subject to the provisions of 
Section 6 (AG4 zone provisions) of the ACW Zoning By-law. Notwithstanding Section 6.4 to the contrary, 
all structures shall be subject to a zone setback of 0.5 metres. All proposed structures will be required to 
be constructed within the subject special zone. 
 
As noted in Figure 1, the property to the east of the subject property contained natural environment features, 
while the property to the north is used for agriculture.  Moreover, the shared lot lines with the subject 
properties are heavily treed. As such, the reduced setbacks do not pose any negative impacts on adjacent 
neighbours, and will allow the applicants to utilize as much of the available building envelope within the 
special zone as possible.  
 
The applicants have worked extensively with the Huron County Forester and Huron County 
Biologist/Stewardship Coordinator since purchasing the subject property. In lieu of an Environmental Impact 
Study, the applicants retained the services of a Registered Professional Forester to develop a Forest 
Management Plan. The Forest Management Plan outlines the ways in which portions of the property 
damaged by the 2011 tornado may be rehabilitated, in addition to identifying present invasive species and 
providing a strategy for their removal. Marcus Maddalena, the Huron County Biologist & Stewardship 
Coordinator has confirmed that any outstanding natural heritage concerns with the proposal can be 
addressed through: 

 The implementation of the Forest Management Plan;  

 The preservation of the mature trees; and 

 The preservation of an existing foundation outside the area proposed for re-zoning as a potential 
habitat for native snakes. 

mark
Typewritten Text
5.1 (A)

mark
Typewritten Text



Z02-20 Otten    2 

 

Comments were also received from Maitland Valley Conservation Authority and ACW Staff. None of the 
aforementioned have further concerns. No comments were received by neighbours.  
 
Prior to the –h holding zone being lifted, the applicants would be required to enter into a Development 
Agreement with the Township to specify road standards and forest management, as well as submit a survey 
of the special zone. River Line is not built to a municipal standard to the property’s point of access. The 
Development Agreement will outline the agreed upon development standard to which River Line will be 
constructed by the applicants. Section 3.21 of the ACW Zoning By-law currently stipulates that that no 
personal shall erect a building or structure on any lot until said lot fronts on a public road and said public 
road is of satisfactory construction. Once River Line is developed to the aforementioned standard, the 
applicants would be eligible to apply for the –h holding zone to be lifted.  
 
Figure 1: Aerial Photo of Subject Property (proposed area to be rezoned outlined in red)  

 
 
Figure 2: Aerial of Area Proposed to Be Rezoned 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Z02-20 Otten    3 

 

Figure 3: Site Plan Submitted by the Applicants 

 
 
COMMENTS  

 Not 
Received 

No 
Concerns 

Concerns See Conditions / Comment 

Neighbours     

ACW Staff    A Development Agreement will need to be entered 
into prior to the lifting of the holding zone, with regard 
to road development and forest management. A 
survey of the special zone will also be required. 

Maitland Valley 
Conservation 
Authority 

   No natural hazards concerns with the proposal. 

Marcus 
Maddalena, Huron 
County Biologist & 
Stewardhip 
Coordinator 

   Natural heritage concerns are addressed through the 
implementation of the prescribed forest management 
plan, which will result in the rehabilitation of the 
property and the removal of invasive street. It is 
further requested that an existing foundation be left 
in place for snake habitat. 

 
SUMMARY 
It is recommended that Zoning By-law Amendment application Z02-20 be approved. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Celina Whaling-Rae 
Planner  



Z02-20 Otten    4 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
57 Napier Street, Goderich, Ontario N7A 1W2 CANADA 

Phone: 519.524.8394 Ext. 3 Fax: 519.524.5677 Toll Free: 1.888.524.8394 Ext. 3 

www.huroncounty.ca 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 

“Planning with the community for a healthy, viable and sustainable future.” 

 

To:  Celina Whaling-Rae, Planner, County of Huron, via email 

CC:   Jason Otten, Applicant, via email 

Florence Witherspoon, Clerk, Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh, via email 

Patrick Huber-Kidby, Environmental Planner/Regulaitions Officer, MVCA, via email 

From:  Marcus Maddalena, County Biologist/Stewardship Coordinator, County of Huron  

Date:   August 26th, 2020 

Subject: Natural Heritage Comments Regarding Colborne Part Lot 28, 81003 River Line 

  

 

The County of Huron has reviewed the above noted application with respect to Provincial and 

Municipal Policies and associated mapping related to Natural Heritage features. We offer the 

following comments based on our review.  

 

It is our understanding that the proposed zoning bylaw amendment will re-zone an approximately 

1.37 acre portion of the property from NE1 to NE1-45-H, permitting a new residence, septic 

system, and accessory structures. 

 

Natural Heritage 

The property in question is zoned NE1, which does permit change of use (ACW Official Plan 

Section 6.4.5) prior to demonstrating that no negative impacts on the natural features or ecological 

functions of the area will result. ACW Official Plan Mapping (Appendix 4 and 5) identifies the 

NE1 Zoned area on this property as Significant Woodland and Significant Wildlife Habitat. 

Development is not permitted in areas with Significant Wildlife Habitat and/or Woodland or 

adjacent lands (considered to be within 50m) (ACW Official Plan, Section 6.4.7). 

 

The proposed rezoning largely includes an already cleared area at the entrance to the property. The 

area considered adjacent lands has abundant non-native and invasive species (notably Garlic 

Mustard (Alliaria petiolata), Preiwinkle (Vinca sp.), European Buckthorn (Rhamnus cathartica), 

Goutweed (Aegopodium podagaria). Each of these species has the potential to spread rapidly and 

fundamentally alter woodland understory and/or sub-canopy, resulting in changes to native plant 

communities. The property has also been severely damaged by a tornado, and blowdown of mature 

trees is of concern as it may facilitate further spread of these species. 

 

The applicants have demonstrated their willingness to rehabilitate tornado damaged areas of the 

property and remove invasive species, and have worked with a Registered Professional Forested 

to develop a Forest Management Plan with these goals. The applicants have also indicated that all 



 Page 2 of 2. 

 

 

landscaping will include native pollinator friendly species to prevent further invasive species 

establishment. 

 

Recommendation 

Based on our review of the proposed zoning bylaw amendment and the associated Natural Heritage 

features, we believe any natural heritage concerns can be abated through measures proposed or 

agreed upon by the applicants. As such we have no concerns with the proposed zoning bylaw, 

provided the following measures are adhered to: 

- No removal of mature trees occurs outside of the rezoned area for the purposes of 

development, and those in the rezoned area are preserved as indicated by the applicants 

(most notably mature locust trees adjacent to the road right of way). 

- No alterations are made to the stone barn foundation in the adjacent lands as to preserve 

any potential snake hibernacula. 

- The applicants continue to implement the activities outlined in their Forest Management 

Plan 

- The applicants undertake efforts to remove invasive species mentioned earlier, as indicated 

through correspondence with the County of Huron as in their Forest Management Plan. 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on this application. If you have any questions, please 

contact the County Planning Department.   

 

Regards,  

 

Marcus Maddalena, County Biologist/Stewardship Coordinator 

 



     

  

MEMORANDUM 

 

TO: Florence Witherspoon, Clerk, Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh, 

via email 

CC: Jason Otten, applicant, via email 

 Marcus Maddalena, Biologist, County of Huron, via email 

Celina Whaling-Rae, Planner, County of Huron, via email 

FROM: Patrick Huber-Kidby, Environmental Planner/Regulations Officer, MVCA 

DATE: August 17, 2020 

SUBJECT: Application for Zoning By-law Amendment:  Z02-20 (ACW) 

   Part Lot 29, Maitland Concession, Colborne Ward – Township of Ashfield-

Colborne-Wawanosh, County of Huron; known as 81003 River Line 

__________________________________________________________________________  

 
The Maitland Valley Conservation Authority (MVCA) has reviewed the above-noted application 

with respect to natural hazards in accordance with our Memorandum of Understanding with the 

County of Huron; and in accordance with our delegated responsibility for representing the 

“Provincial Interest” for natural hazards; and relative to MVCA policies made under Ontario 

Regulation 164/06 (Development, Interference with Wetlands and Alterations to Shorelines and 

Watercourses Regulation).  Based on our review, we offer the following comments. 

    

It is our understanding the purpose of the zoning by-law amendment is to change a portion of the 

property from NE1, to NE1-45-H to permit a new residence, septic system and accessory 

structures. 

 

Natural Hazards: 

 

The subject property features floodplain, river valley, watercourse and wetland. These areas are 

subject to flooding and/or erosion hazards. 

 

MVCA is satisfied the locations of the residence, septic system, and accessory structures as these 

locations pertain to the natural hazards present on the property. 

 

MVCA Regulated Lands: 

 

The subject property features watercourse, one zone floodplain, river valley lands, and wetlands; 

watercourse, plus 15 meters from the stable top of bank of the watercourse; floodplains, plus 15 

meters of adjacent land from the boundary of the floodplain; river valleys plus 15 meters from 

stable top of bank, and non-provincially significant wetlands plus 30 meters from the boundary 

of the wetland, are regulated by the Maitland Valley Conservation Authority (MVCA).  Subject 

to the regulation, any proposed development (construction, reconstruction, filling and/or site 

grading) interference and/or site alteration within MVCA’s regulated area must be reviewed and 

approved by MVCA prior to any works beginning.  



81003 River Line 
Application for Zoning By-law Amendment Z02-20 (ACW) 

2 

 

No works are proposed as part of this application contrary to what can be permitted under 

Ontario Regulation 164/06. 

Recommendation: 

 

Based upon our review of the proposal for which this amendment is required MVCA has no 

objection to the Zoning By-law Amendment Z02-20 (ACW), it is in conformance with the 

Natural Hazard policies of the Provincial Policy Statement, 2020.  

 

We have not received our $240.00 fee for our review of this application. As such we will invoice 

the applicant directly. 

 

Thank you for the opportunity to comment at this time. 



Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh 

82133 Council Line, RR5 

Goderich, ON N7A 3Y2 

www.acwtownship.ca             August 12, 2020 

519-524-4669          FILE: ACW Z02-20 Otten 

 

Notice of Public Meeting 
For a Proposed Zoning By-law Amendment Application 
Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, cP. 13., S. 34 

A change is proposed in your neighbourhood. A Zoning By-law Amendment application has been 

received that, if approved, would change the zoning on a portion of the subject property to allow for 

the construction of a single detached residence and accessory buildings. 

 

You are being notified of this application because your name appears on the assessment roll for 

properties within 120 metres of the subject lands, or you are an agency requiring notice.  

 

You are invited to participate in an online Public Meeting on Tuesday, September 1st, 2020 at 

9:00am. During this time, the Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh Council will be considering the 

change. 

 

 
Owner/Applicant: Jason and Julie Otten               

Location of Property: CON Maitland Part Lot 29, Colborne (81003 River Line)  

 

The Proposed Change 
The purpose and effect of the proposed Zoning By-law Amendment (Application ACW Z02-20) is to 

change the zoning on a portion of the subject property from ‘Natural Environment (NE1)’ to ‘Natural 

Environment – Special – Holding (NE1-45-H)’ to permit a single detached residence and accessory 

buildings, subject to the provisions of Section 6 (AG4 zone provisions) of the zoning by-law. 

Notwithstanding Section 6.4 to the contrary, all structures shall be subject to a zone setback of 0.5 

metres.  

 

The holding zone shall be applied to the subject special zone until a i) development agreement has been 

entered into between the owners and the Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh with regard to 

road development and forest management, and ii) road frontage is achieved. The zoning change applies 

to 1.37 acres of this 50 acre parcel.  

 

Council of the Corporation of the Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh considered this application 

to be complete on July 20, 2020. 

 

http://www.acwtownship.ca/


Maps showing the general location of the lands to which this Zoning By-law Amendment apply are 

shown in the draft by-law attached to this Notice. 

 

Learn More 
Further information regarding this application can be found at http://www.acwtownship.ca/property-

development/planning-applications/. Questions may be directed to the Planner Celina Whaling-Rae at 

cwhalingrae@huroncounty.ca or by phoning 519-524-8394 extension 3. Once the municipal office re-

opens, information about the application can also be obtained in-person between the hours of 8:30am 

and 4:00pm.  

 

Have Your Say  
Any person may attend the public meeting and/or make written or verbal representation, either in 

support of, or in opposition to, the proposed zoning by-law amendment. 

 

Comments and opinions submitted on this proposal, including the originator’s name and address, 

become part of the public record, and may be viewed by the general public and may be published in a 

planning report and Council agenda. 

 

1. You can submit comments, objections or concerns by mail (address above) or email to  

clerk@acwtownship.ca  

2. You can speak during the online public meeting. *Individuals are strongly encouraged to submit 

their comments prior to the meeting for consideration. 

 

How to Access the Public Meeting 
As a result of the COVID-19 Pandemic, the Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh has closed the 

municipal office to the public. The Public Meeting will be held in electronic format. 

 

You are entitled to attend this public meeting electronically to express your views about this application, 

or you may be represented by counsel for that purpose.   

 

For information on how to participate in the Public Meeting, please visit the municipal website at 

http://www.acwtownship.ca/council/council-agendas-4/. Details on participating in the electronic 

meeting will be provided when the agenda is published at the end of the business day on the Friday 

before the meeting. If you have any questions regarding how to participate in the meeting, please phone 

the municipal office at 519-524-4669.  

 

Stay Informed 
If you would like to be notified of the decision, you must make a written request to the Planning Advisory 

Committee at the municipal address above, or through email to clerk@acwtownship.ca. This will also 

entitle you to be advised of a possible Local Planning Appeal Tribunal hearing if the decision of this 

application is appealed. 

 

Your Rights 
The applicant, the Minister of Municipal Affairs & Housing, or any other person or public body who has 

an interest in this matter may, within 20 days of the making of the decision, appeal to the Tribunal against 

the decision of the Committee. This may be done by filing with Clerk a Notice of Appeal setting out the 

objection to the decision and the reasons in support of the objection. This must be accompanied by 

payment to the Secretary-Treasurer of the fee charged by the Tribunal under the Local Planning Appeal 

Tribunal Act, 2017 as payable on an appeal from a Planning Advisory Committee to the Tribunal, in 

accordance with Section 34 of the Planning Act. For more information, please visit the Local Planning 

Appeal Tribunal website at https://elto.gov.on.ca/tribunals/lpat.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.acwtownship.ca/property-development/planning-applications/
http://www.acwtownship.ca/property-development/planning-applications/
mailto:cwhalingrae@huroncounty.ca
mailto:clerk@acwtownship.ca
http://www.acwtownship.ca/council/council-agendas-4/
mailto:clerk@acwtownship.ca
https://elto.gov.on.ca/tribunals/lpat


 

 
 

 
 

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF 

ASHFIELD-COLBORNE-WAWANOSH 
 

                                                   BY-LAW NUMBER 57-2020 

 

BEING A BY-LAW to amend the Zoning By-law 32-2008 for the Township of Ashfield-

Colborne-Wawanosh. 

 

WHEREAS the Municipal Council of the Corporation of the Township of Ashfield-Colborne-

Wawanosh considers it advisable to amend Zoning By-law 32-2008, as amended, of the 

Corporation of the Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh and; 

 

NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Ashfield-Colborne-

Wawanosh ENACTS as follows: 

 

1. This by-law shall apply to Concession Maitland, Part Lot 29 (Colborne), Township of 

Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh; as described and shown on the attached Schedules 1, 

2, 3 & 4. 

 

2. By-law 32-2008 is hereby amended by changing on the attached Schedule 3 from 

‘Natural Environment (NE1)’ to ‘Natural Environment – Special - Holding (NE1-45-

H)’ the zone symbol on the lands designated ‘zone change to NE1-45-H’. 

 

3. Section 7.5, NE1 Special Zones of By-Law 32-2008 is hereby amended by adding the 

following sub-section: 

 

“NE1-45-H 

Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 7.1 and 7.2 of this by-law to the contrary, 

the area zoned NE1-45 may be used for one single detached residence and accessory 

buildings, subject to the provisions of Section 6 (AG4 zone provisions). 

Notwithstanding Section 6.4 of this by-law to the contrary, all structures shall be 

subject to a zone setback of 0.5 metres. A Holding shall be applied to the subject special 

zone until: 

- A Development Agreement has been entered into between the owners and the 

Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh with regard to site development 

and forest management, and; 

- When road frontage is achieved. 

All other applicable provisions shall continue to apply." 

 

4. Section By-law 32-2008, is hereby amended by replacing Key Map 15 with a new Key 

Map 15, as attached on Schedule 3, which is declared to be part of this by-law. 

 

5. All other provisions of By-law 32-2008 shall apply. 

 

6. This by-law shall come into force upon final passing, pursuant to Section 34(21) of the 

Planning Act, RSO 1990, as amended. 

 

 

  Read a FIRST and SECOND time this 1st day of September 2020. 

 

 

  Read a THIRD TIME and FINALLY PASSED this 1st day of September 2020. 

 

               

_______________________________________ 

               Glen McNeil, Mayor 

       

 

         ________________________________________ 

Mark Becker, CAO/Deputy Clerk  

mark
Typewritten Text
5.1 (A)

mark
Typewritten Text
14.2

mark
Typewritten Text



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF 

ASHFIELD-COLBORNE-WAWANOSH 

SCHEDULE 1 

                                                   BY-LAW NUMBER 57-2020 

 

By-law 57-2020 has the following purpose and effect: 

 

1. The zoning by-law (application #: ACW Z02-20) changes the zoning on a portion of 

Concession Maitland, Part Lot 29 (Colborne), Township of Ashfield-Colborne-

Wawanosh.  

 

The purpose and effect of this Zoning By-law Amendment is to change the zoning on 

the portion of the property from ‘Natural Environment (NE1) to Natural Environment 

– Special - Holding (NE1-45-H) to permit a single detached residence and accessory 

buildings 

 

The special zone would subject the aforementioned structures to the provisions of 

Section 6 (AG4 zone provisions). Notwithstanding Section 6.4, a zone setback of 0.5 

metres for all structures would be permitted. 

 

The Holding zone shall apply until a Development Agreement has been entered into 

between the owners and the Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh with regard 

to site development and forest management, and when road frontage is achieved. 

 

All other provisions of the Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh Zoning By-law 

32-2008 shall apply. 

 

2. This by-law amends the Zoning By-law of the Corporation of the Township of 

Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh (32-2008). 

 

3. The location map and key maps showing the location to which this by-law applies are 

found on the following pages and are entitled Schedule 2, 3 & 4. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF 

ASHFIELD-COLBORNE-WAWANOSH 

SCHEDULE 2 

BY-LAW NUMBER 57-2020 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF 

ASHFIELD-COLBORNE-WAWANOSH 

SCHEDULE 3 

BY-LAW NUMBER 57-2020 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF 

ASHFIELD-COLBORNE-WAWANOSH 

SCHEDULE 4 

BY-LAW NUMBER 57-2020 

 



Florence
Typewritten Text
ACW Z02-20 Otten

Florence
Typewritten Text

Florence
Typewritten Text

Florence
Typewritten Text

Florence
Typewritten Text
July 17, 2020

Florence
Typewritten Text

Florence
Typewritten Text
July 17, 2020

Florence
Typewritten Text























Septic bed

350.0000

75' x 75'

Well

Septic Tank

285.0000

40.0000

65.0000

Shed 38x54

200.0000

18.3748

50.8614

76.1440

21.5161

56.3245

108.2286

33.0727

12.2596

12.0000

24.7380

Garden

20 x 20

Shed

142.2834

2.1321

3.0188

48.0000

21.0000

31.0833

47.8340

27.1485

42.0000

25.3330

400.0000



PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
57 Napier Street, Goderich, Ontario N7A 1W2 CANADA 

Phone: 519.524.8394 Ext. 3 Fax: 519.524.5677   
Toll Free: 1.888.524.8394 Ext. 3 

www.huroncounty.ca 

  
 
To: Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh, Mayor, and Members of Council  
From: Celina Whaling-Rae, Planner 
Date: August 27, 2020 
 
Re: Zoning By-law Amendment Application Z03-20 
 Concession 4 WD, Part of Lot 3, Part of Road Allowance Between Lots 3 & 4, Ashfield, 

Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh, known municipally as 35441 Dungannon Road 
 

Owner: The Andersons Canada Ltd.  
Applicant: IBI Group (John Ariens) 

This report is submitted to Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh (ACW) Council for the Council Meeting on 
September 1, 2020. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended that Zoning By-law Amendment Application Z03-20 be approved.  

 
PURPOSE  
The purpose and effect of the proposed Zoning By-law Amendment is to change the zoning on the subject 
property from ‘Agricultural Commercial/Industrial (AG3)’ to ‘Agricultural Commercial/Industrial (AG3-3)’ to 
eliminate any minimum side yard or rear yard setbacks for any existing or future building or structure from 
an interior side lot line or a rear lot line where the abutting property is zoned ‘Agricultural 
Commercial/Industrial (AG3)’. The special zone is proposed to accommodate the severance proposed in 
Consent Application C50-20, in order to accommodate separate ownership of existing buildings while 
maintaining the existing uses/functionality of the land.  
 
REVIEW 
The subject property is 11.4 acres in size, and is zoned ‘Agricultural Commercial/Industrial (AG3)’ in the 
ACW Zoning By-law (Zone Map 11). It is designated Agriculture in the ACW Official Plan. The entirety of 
the subject property is proposed for the zoning by-law amendment. 
 
As stated in a planning brief submitted by the applicant, the proposed zoning by-law amendment will have 
the effect of eliminating any minimum required setbacks between the two parcels proposed be subdivided 
in Consent Application C50-20. This is a zoning approach that is similar to that taken in commercial outlets 
that contain ‘big box stores’ in more urbanized communities, and is necessary to recognize the deficiencies 
in setbacks from existing structures on the two parcels subject to approval in C50-20. The lands adjacent 
to the two proposed parcels are not zoned AG3, and therefore would not be impacted by the elimination of 
the side yard and rear yard setbacks, as they would continue to apply for future structures.  
 
The zoning by-law amendment does not propose to change the existing uses of the subject property, which 
conform to the provisions of the AG3 zone as per the ACW Zoning By-law. Further, AG3 uses are permitted 
within the Agriculture designation as per the ACW Official Plan.  
 
No comments were received by any of the circulated agencies or neighbours with regard to the application. 
ACW Staff are supportive of the proposal.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

mark
Typewritten Text
5.1 (B)

mark
Typewritten Text



Z03-20 The Andersons Canada Ltd. (IBI Group)   2 

 

Figure 1: Severance Sketch (lot lines to which the special zone applies to indicated by arrows) 

 
 
Figure 2: Aerial Photo of Subject Property  

 
 
 
COMMENTS  

 Not 
Received 

No 
Concerns 

Concerns See Conditions / Comment 

Neighbours     



Z03-20 The Andersons Canada Ltd. (IBI Group)   3 

 

ACW Staff    Staff are supportive of the proposal. 

Union Gas     

Avon Maitland 
District School 
Board 

    

Ministry of 
Transportation 

    

 
SUMMARY 
It is recommended that Zoning By-law Amendment Application Z03-20 be approved.  
 
Sincerely, 

 
Celina Whaling-Rae 
Planner  

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh 

82133 Council Line, RR5 

Goderich, ON N7A 3Y2 

www.acwtownship.ca                          August 5, 2020 

519-524-4669               FILE: ACW Z03-20  

      The Andersons Canada Ltd. (IBI Group) 

Notice of Public Meeting 
For a Proposed Zoning By-law Amendment Application 
Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, cP. 13., S. 34 

A change is proposed in your neighbourhood. A Zoning By-law Amendment application has been 

received that, if approved, would change the zoning on the subject property to eliminate any minimum 

side yard or rear yard setbacks for any existing or future building or structure from an interior side lot 

line or a rear lot line where the abutting property is zoned ‘Agricultural Commercial/Industrial (AG3)’. 

 

You are being notified of this application because your name appears on the assessment roll for 

properties within 120 metres of the subject lands, or you are an agency requiring notice.  

 

You are invited to participate in an online Public Meeting on Tuesday, September 1st, 2020 at 

9:00am. During this time, the Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh Council will be considering the 

change. 

 

 
Owner/Applicant: The Andersons Canada Ltd. (IBI Group)               

Location of Property: Part of Lot 3, Concession 4 WD of Part of Road Allowance Between Lots 3 & 4  

(Ashfield) (35441 Dungannon Road)  

 

The Proposed Change 
The purpose and effect of the proposed Zoning By-law Amendment (Application ACW Z03-20) is to 

change the zoning on a portion of the subject property from ‘Agricultural Commercial/Industrial (AG3)’ 

to ‘Agricultural Commercial/Industrial – Special (AG3-3)’ to eliminate any minimum side yard or rear yard 

setbacks for any existing or future building or structure from an interior side lot line or a rear lot line 

where the abutting property is zoned ‘Agricultural Commercial/Industrial (AG3)’. The special zone is 

proposed to accommodate a severance of the existing parcel to accommodate separate ownership while 

maintaining the existing uses. 

 

Council of the Corporation of the Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh considered this application 

to be complete on July 20, 2020. 

 

Maps showing the general location of the lands to which this Zoning By-law Amendment apply are 

shown in the draft by-law attached to this Notice. 

http://www.acwtownship.ca/


Learn More 
Further information regarding this application can be found at http://www.acwtownship.ca/property-

development/planning-applications/. Questions may be directed to the Planner Celina Whaling-Rae at 

cwhalingrae@huroncounty.ca or by phoning 519-524-8394 extension 3. Once the municipal office re-

opens, information about the application can also be obtained in-person between the hours of 8:30am 

and 4:00pm.  

 

Have Your Say  
Any person may attend the public meeting and/or make written or verbal representation, either in 

support of, or in opposition to, the proposed zoning by-law amendment. 

 

Comments and opinions submitted on this proposal, including the originator’s name and address, 

become part of the public record, and may be viewed by the general public and may be published in a 

planning report and Council agenda. 

 

1. You can submit comments, objections or concerns by mail (address above) or email to  

clerk@acwtownship.ca  

2. You can speak during the online public meeting. *Individuals are strongly encouraged to submit 

their comments prior to the meeting for consideration. 

 

How to Access the Public Meeting 
As a result of the COVID-19 Pandemic, the Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh has closed the 

municipal office to the public. The Public Meeting will be held in electronic format. 

 

You are entitled to attend this public meeting electronically to express your views about this application, 

or you may be represented by counsel for that purpose.   

 

For information on how to participate in the Public Meeting, please visit the municipal website at 

http://www.acwtownship.ca/council/council-agendas-4/. Details on participating in the electronic 

meeting will be provided when the agenda is published at the end of the business day on the Friday 

before the meeting. If you have any questions regarding how to participate in the meeting, please phone 

the municipal office at 519-524-4669.  

 

Stay Informed 
If you would like to be notified of the decision, you must make a written request to the Committee of 

Adjustment at the municipal address above, or through email to clerk@acwtownship.ca. This will also 

entitle you to be advised of a possible Local Planning Appeal Tribunal hearing if the decision of this 

application is appealed. 

 

Your Rights 
The applicant, the Minister of Municipal Affairs & Housing, or any other person or public body who has 

an interest in this matter may, within 20 days of the making of the decision, appeal to the Tribunal against 

the decision of the Committee. This may be done by filing with the Secretary-Treasurer of the Committee 

a Notice of Appeal setting out the objection to the decision and the reasons in support of the objection. 

This must be accompanied by payment to the Secretary-Treasurer of the fee charged by the Tribunal 

under the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal Act, 2017 as payable on an appeal from a Committee of 

Adjustment to the Tribunal, in accordance with Section 45(12) of the Planning Act. For more information, 

please visit the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal website at https://elto.gov.on.ca/tribunals/lpat.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.acwtownship.ca/property-development/planning-applications/
http://www.acwtownship.ca/property-development/planning-applications/
mailto:cwhalingrae@huroncounty.ca
mailto:clerk@acwtownship.ca
http://www.acwtownship.ca/council/council-agendas-4/
mailto:clerk@acwtownship.ca
https://elto.gov.on.ca/tribunals/lpat


 

 
 

 
 

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF 

ASHFIELD-COLBORNE-WAWANOSH 
 

                                                   BY-LAW NUMBER 58-2020 

 

BEING A BY-LAW to amend the Zoning By-law 32-2008 for the Township of Ashfield-

Colborne-Wawanosh. 

 

WHEREAS the Municipal Council of the Corporation of the Township of Ashfield-Colborne-

Wawanosh considers it advisable to amend Zoning By-law 32-2008, as amended, of the 

Corporation of the Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh and; 

 

NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Ashfield-Colborne-

Wawanosh ENACTS as follows: 

 

1. This by-law shall apply to Part of Lot 3, Concession 4, Western Division of Part of 

Road Allowance Between Lots 3 & 4, Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh, as 

described and shown on the attached Schedules 1, 2, 3 & 4. 

 

2. By-law 32-2008 is hereby amended by changing on the attached Schedule 3 from 

‘Agricultural Commercial/Industrial (AG3)’ to ‘Agricultural Commercial/Industrial – 

Special (AG3-3)’ the zone symbol on the lands designated ‘zone change to AG3-3’. 

 

3. Section 5.10, AG3 Special Zones of By-Law 32-2008 is hereby amended by adding 

the following sub-section: 

 

“AG3-3 

Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary, no side yard or rear yard setback shall 

be required for any building or structure from an interior side lot line or a rear lot line 

where the abutting property is zoned AG3. All other applicable provisions shall 

continue to apply." 

 

4. Section By-law 32-2008, is hereby amended by replacing Key Map 11 with a new Key 

Map 11, as attached on Schedule 3, which is declared to be part of this by-law. 

 

5. All other provisions of By-law 32-2008 shall apply. 

 

6. This by-law shall come into force upon final passing, pursuant to Section 34(21) of the 

Planning Act, RSO 1990, as amended. 

 

 

  Read a FIRST and SECOND time this 1st day of September 2020. 

 

 

  Read a THIRD TIME and FINALLY PASSED this 1st day of September 2020. 

 

               

_______________________________________ 

               Glen McNeil, Mayor 

       

 

         ________________________________________ 

Mark Becker, CAO/Deputy Clerk  

mark
Typewritten Text
5.1 (B)

mark
Typewritten Text
14.3

mark
Typewritten Text



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF 

ASHFIELD-COLBORNE-WAWANOSH 

SCHEDULE 1 

                                                   BY-LAW NUMBER 58-2020 

 

By-law 58-2020 has the following purpose and effect: 

 

1. The zoning by-law (application #: ACW Z03-20) changes the zoning on a portion of 

Part of Lot 3, Concession 4, Western Division of Part of Road Allowance Between 

Lots 3 & 4, Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh.  

 

The purpose and effect of this Zoning By-law Amendment is to change the zoning on 

the portion of the property from ‘Agriculture Commercial/Industrial (AG3) to 

‘Agriculture Commercial/Industrial – Special (AG3-3) to accommodate a severance of 

the existing parcel to accommodate separate ownership while maintaining the existing 

uses. 

 

The special zone would eliminate any minimum side yard or rear yard setbacks for any 

existing or future building or structure from an interior side lot line or a rear lot line 

where the abutting property is zoned ‘Agricultural Commercial/Industrial (AG3)’. 

 

All other provisions of the Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh Zoning By-law 

32-2008 shall apply. 

 

2. This by-law amends the Zoning By-law of the Corporation of the Township of 

Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh (32-2008). 

 

3. The location map and key maps showing the location to which this by-law applies are 

found on the following pages and are entitled Schedule 2, 3 & 4. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF 

ASHFIELD-COLBORNE-WAWANOSH 

SCHEDULE 2 

BY-LAW NUMBER 58-2020 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF 

ASHFIELD-COLBORNE-WAWANOSH 

SCHEDULE 3 

BY-LAW NUMBER 58-2020 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF 

ASHFIELD-COLBORNE-WAWANOSH 

SCHEDULE 4 

BY-LAW NUMBER 58-2020 

 



























PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
57 Napier Street, Goderich, Ontario N7A 1W2 CANADA 

Phone: 519.524.8394 Ext. 3 Fax: 519.524.5677 Toll Free: 1.888.524.8394 

Ext. 3 

www.huroncounty.ca 

 
 
 

Consent Application Report – File C50/20 
To Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh Council 

 

Recommendation:  That provisional consent be: 

     granted with conditions (attached) 
        deferred  

        denied (referred to the County Committee of the Whole Day 1  
               for a decision) 

 
Purpose:      enlarge abutting lot 
    create new lot 
    _  surplus farm dwelling 
   right-of-way / easement 
        other: 
 

 Area 
 

Official Plan 
Designation: 

Zoning:  Structures: 

Severed 
(5A) 
 

1.13 hectares (2.8 
acres) 

Agriculture AG3 (Agricultural 
Commercial/Industrial) 

1 building, 3 
silos, and 4 
tanks 

Retained 
(5B) 
 

3.45 hectares (8.5 
acres) 

Agriculture 
 

AG3 (Agricultural 
Commercial/Industrial) 

4 buildings, 5 
silos, and 12 
metal bins 

 
Review:  This application: 
 Is consistent with the Provincial Policy Statement (s. 3(5) Planning Act); 
 Does not require a plan of subdivision for the proper and orderly development of the municipality 

(s.53(1) Planning Act); 
 Conforms with section 51(24) of the Planning Act; 
 Conforms with the Huron County Official Plan; 
 Conforms with the Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh Official Plan; 
 Complies with the Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh Zoning By-law (or will comply subject to a standard 

condition of rezoning or minor variance); 
__ Has been recommended for approval by the local municipality; and  
 Has no unresolved objections/concerns raised (to date) from agencies or the public. 

(Applications that do not meet all of the foregoing criteria will be referred to the County Committee of the 
Whole Day 1 for a decision) 

 

Agency / Other Comments: 

 Not 
Received 

No 
Concerns 

Concerns See Conditions / Comment 

Neighbours     

ACW Staff    The Building Department has requested that the 
location of the two septic systems on the retained 
parcel be more precisely determined. Regardless, 

Owner/Applicant: The Andersons Canada Limited (IBI Group) Date: August 27, 2020 

Property Address:  35541 Dungannon Road 

Property Description:  Concession 4 Western Division, Part Lot 3, Part of Road Allowance as RP 22R1489 Parts 
1 & 2, Ashfield, Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh 

mark
Typewritten Text

mark
Typewritten Text
5.2

mark
Typewritten Text



Consent Application C50/20 The Andersons Canada Limited (IBI Group) Page 2 of 5 
August 27, 2020 

the department notes that there is adequate space 
on both parcels for a replacement system. Staff 
has no concerns with the proposal. 

Ministry of 
Transportation 

    

 
Figure 1: Severance Sketch (Parcel A = retained; Parcel B = severed) 

 
 
 
Figure 2 & 3: Images of the Subject Property 

 
 



Consent Application C50/20 The Andersons Canada Limited (IBI Group) Page 3 of 5 
August 27, 2020 

 

 

Figure 4: 2015 Aerial of the Subject Property 

 

Additional Comments: 

This consent application was submitted for the purpose of subdividing an existing property used into two 
conveyable parcels. This application was submitted in conjunction with Zoning By-law Amendment 
Application Z03-20, which proposes to amend the zoning on the subject property to eliminate any side or 
rear yard setbacks between the two proposed parcels.  

 

The total size of the subject property is 4.6 hectares (11.4 acres). It is designated Agriculture in the ACW 
Official Plan, and is zoned AG3 as per Key Map 11 of the ACW Zoning By-law. As shown in Figure 1, the 
property currently contains numerous structures, such as silos, metal bins, and an office building which 
support the operation of existing Agricultural Commercial/Industrial uses.  

 
The property is currently owned by The Andersons Canada Limited, who process and package food 
grade products, as well as ship grain and edible beans to domestic and international markets.  

 The portion of the property proposed to be severed is currently rented by Sylvite, who 
manufacture fertilizer products. 

 As was noted in pre-consultation discussions with the applicant, the approval of the subject 
application would allow both companies to achieve individual ownership of the structures on the 
subject property which support their day-to-day operations.  

 The applicant has submitted a planning brief, which further outlines the rationale behind the 
proposal, and the proposal’s conformity with applicable planning and development policies. The 
planning brief notes that the use(s) of the subject property is not proposed to change should the 



Consent Application C50/20 The Andersons Canada Limited (IBI Group) Page 4 of 5 
August 27, 2020 

consent application be approved, and that said use(s) comply with the provisions of the 
applicable AG3 zone.  

 
As is evident in Figure 1, the approval of the subject application would result in various structures on both 
parcels failing to meet the minimum setbacks of the AG3 zone. The applicant proposes to address this 
non-compliance through amending the zoning on the subject property, as further described in Zoning By-
law Amendment Application Z03-20.  
 

In order to address shared access, utilities and servicing, the applicant is proposing to register reciprocal 
blanket easement across the two parcels. This will allow for the continued shared use of the two 
properties between Andersons and Sylvite. As is evident in Figure 1, without the blanket easements, the 
severed parcel does not contain adequate turnaround space for vehicles and emergency services, or 
parking space. The applicant has confirmed that the intent of both companies is to continue to use the 
properties in the same manner as it is currently being used. 

 

The property currently contains two septic beds; one which services the existing office building, and one 
which services a grain elevator. The ACW Building Department has conducted a septic inspection of the 
subject property, and is requesting that the location of the septic bed which services the office building be 
more accurately determined by the applicant. The department notes that there is a chance that the bed 
will not comply with the Ontario Building Code, as it may fall less than 10 feet from the shared lot line 
between the severed and retained parcels. Should this be the case, the department will not permit the 
replacement of said septic bed within the same location. However, the department notes that there is 
adequate space elsewhere on the retained parcel for a contingency bed. ACW staff have no concerns 
with regard to the application. No further comments were received by neighbours or the Ministry of 
Transportation. 
 
Section 3.3 of the ACW Official Plan identifies limiting non-farm development in the agriculture 
designation as a goal of the community, in order to support a strong agricultural sector. The proposed 
severance facilitates the creation of a new lot to be used for Agricultural Commercial/Industrial uses while 
maintaining the existing agricultural land base. Section 3.5 of the Official Plan permits severances such 
as that proposed subject to the provisions of Section 3.4.6, which states that, where possible, agricultural 
commercial and industrial uses locate in groups, near settlement areas, as is proposed. The odd-shape of 
the two parcels is not ideal; however, planning staff are satisfied that the proposed easements will 
address potential adverse impacts. Section 3.4.6 further stipulates that further requirements with regard 
to agricultural commercial and industrial uses shall be addressed through site plan control.  
 
Recommended Conditions  
 Expiry Period 
1. Conditions imposed must be met within one year of the date of notice of decision, as required by 

Section 53(41) of the Planning Act, RSO 1990, as amended. If conditions are not fulfilled as 
prescribed within one year, the application shall be deemed to be refused. Provided the conditions 
are fulfilled within one year, the application is valid for two years from the date of the notice of 
decision. 

 
Municipal Requirements 
2. All municipal requirements be met to the satisfaction of the Township including servicing 

connections if required, cash-in-lieu of park dedication, property maintenance, compliance with 
zoning by-law provisions for structures, compliance with Section 65 of the Drainage Act and any 
related requirements, financial or otherwise. 

 
3.       The severed parcel be numbered and addressed for 911 purposes to the satisfaction of the 

Township. 
 
4. The sum of $250.00 to be paid to the municipality as cash-in-lieu of parkland. 
 
5. The location of the existing septic systems be more precisely determined to the satisfaction of the 

Township. 
 
 Survey / Reference Plan 



Consent Application C50/20 The Andersons Canada Limited (IBI Group) Page 5 of 5 
August 27, 2020 

6. Provide to the satisfaction of the County and the Township: 
a) a survey showing the lot lines of the severed parcel and the location of any buildings thereon, and  

 b) a reference plan based on the approved survey. 
 
Zoning  
7.  That the severed and retained parcels be rezoned to recognize the non-complying status of existing 

structures on both parcels.  
 
Other 
8. Reciprocal blanket easements be registered on both the retained and severed parcels for the 

purpose of access, maneuvering, utilities, and drainage to the satisfaction of the Township and the 
County. 

 
9. An easement be registered in favour of the severed parcel for shared use of the well on the 

retained parcel to the satisfaction of the Township and the County. 
 
10.  Site plan control be applied to both the severed and retained parcels through the passing of a site 

specific site plan control by-law to the satisfaction of the Township. 
 
Respectfully, 

      
Celina Whaling-Rae 
Planner     

 



























PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
57 Napier Street, Goderich, Ontario N7A 1W2 CANADA 

Phone: 519.524.8394 Ext. 3 Fax: 519.524.5677   
Toll Free: 1.888.524.8394 Ext. 3 

www.huroncounty.ca 

  
 
To: Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh, Mayor, and Members of Council  
From: Celina Whaling-Rae, Planner 
Date: August 26, 2020 
 
Re: Minor Variance Application MV83-20 
 Plan 136, Part of Park Lot 2 North of Melbourne Street, RP 22R6786 Part 1, Ashfield, Township 

of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh, known municipally as 68 North Street, Port Albert 
 

Owner/Applicant: Darcy Quinlan 

This report is submitted to Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh (ACW) Council for the public meeting on 
September 1, 2020. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
It is recommended that the requested variance in application MV08/20 be approved, subject to the following 
conditions: 

1. That the structure be located within the footprint contained on the site plan that accompanied the 
application. 

2. That the structure be constructed as shown in the elevation drawing that accompanied the 
application. 

3. That the variances’ approval be valid for a period of 18 months from the date of the Committee’s 
decision. 
 

PURPOSE  
This application was submitted for the purpose of allowing a shed to be constructed at a height of 6 metres. 
Section 3.4.3 of the ACW Zoning By-law stipulates that the maximum height at which an accessory building 
may be constructed in the VR1 (Village/Hamlet Residential – Low Density) zone is 4.5 metres. The applicant 
is requesting a 1.5 metre variance in order to construct a shed in which his travel trailer may be stored. The 
shed is proposed to be located at the southwest corner of the subject property. 
 
REVIEW 
The subject property is designated Village/Hamlet, and is located in Port Albert. It is zoned VR1 
(Village/Hamlet Residential – Low Density) (Zone Map 11D). Section 8.4.4.9 of the ACW Official Plan 
requires development to be compatible with surrounding uses. Section 45(1) of the Planning Act provides 
the following four tests of a minor variance: 

 Is the variance minor? 

 Is the variance considered appropriate planning for the subject site? 

 Does the development conform with the ACW Zoning By-law? 

 Does the development conform with the ACW Official Plan? 
 
The building height of an accessory structure with a gable roof (as is proposed) in the ACW Zoning By-law 
is calculated as the vertical distance from the finished grade level to the mean height between the eaves 
and the ridge (as seen in Figure 1). This distance is what is proposed to be 6 metres. 
 
 

mark
Typewritten Text
5.3

mark
Typewritten Text



MV08/20 Quinlan                                                                                                                                            2 

 

Figure 1: Illustration of Building Height        Figure 2: Aerial Photo of Subject Property 

 
Figure 3: Image of the Subject Property 

 
 
 
The purpose of regulating the height of structures within settlement areas is to reduce the impact of 
shadowing on adjacent properties, and to ensure the maintenance of community character. In this case, 
the properties adjacent to the subject property are vacant, thus eliminating any potential negative impacts 
on neighbours. The lots in this portion of Port Albert are large enough that any future development will not 
be inevitably subject to any shadowing. As such, the variance can be considered minor. 
 
The proposal can also be considered appropriate. Despite the requested variance, the proposed shed is of 
a size that is appropriate for an accessory structure, and the main residence will remain the focal point of 
the property from a visual perspective. 
 
A shed such as that proposed is permitted within the VR1 zone as a structure accessory to the residence 
on the subject property. The site will continue to be used for residential purposes, as is intended. The 
development conforms with the ACW Official Plan and Zoning By-law. 

 
COMMENTS  

 Not 
Received 

No 
Concerns 

Concerns See Conditions / Comment 

Neighbours     

ACW Staff     



MV08/20 Quinlan                                                                                                                                            3 

 

SUMMARY 
It is recommended that minor variance application ACW MV08/20 be approved with conditions requiring 
that the structures be located within the proposed footprint and elevations, and that the variances’ approval 
be valid for a period of 18 months from the date of the Committee’s decision. 
 
Please note that this report is prepared without the benefit of input from the public, as may be obtained 
through the public meeting. Council should carefully consider any comments and/or concerns expressed 
at the public meeting prior to make their decision on this application. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Celina Whaling-Rae 
Planner  
Site Inspection: August 20, 2020 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh 

82133 Council Line, RR5 

Goderich, ON N7A 3Y2 

www.acwtownship.ca             August 20, 2020 

519-524-4669             FILE: ACW MV08-20 Quinlan 

 

Notice of Public Meeting 
For a Proposed Minor Variance to Zoning By-law 32-2008 
Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, cP. 13., S. 45 (5) 

A change is proposed in your neighbourhood. A Minor Variance Application has been received that, if 

approved, would allow the construction of a shed in the rear yard with a mean height of 5.7 metres.  

 

You are invited to participate in an online Public Meeting on Tuesday, September 1st, 2020 at 

9:00am. During this time, the Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh Committee of Adjustment will 

be considering the change. 

 

 
Owner/Applicant: Darcy Quinlan              

Location of Property: Plan 136 Part Park Lot 2 North of Melbourne Street, RP 22R6786 Part 1, Ashfield 

(68 North Street, Port Albert)  

 

The Proposed Change 
The purpose of this application is to seek relief from Zoning By-law 32-2008 for the Township of Ashfield-

Colborne-Wawanosh. Section 3.4.3 of the by-law stipulates that the maximum height at which an 

accessory structure (i.e. shed) may be constructed on the 

subject property is 4.5 metres. The applicant is proposing to 

construct a shed that has a mean height of 6 metres.  

 

The subject property is designated Village/Hamlet in the 

Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh Official Plan and is zoned 

VR1 (Village/Hamlet Residential – Low Density) in the 

Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh Zoning By-law (Zone Map 

13C).  

 

Learn More 
Further information regarding this application can be found at http://www.acwtownship.ca/property-

development/planning-applications/. Questions may be directed to the Planner Celina Whaling-Rae at 

cwhalingrae@huroncounty.ca or by phoning 519-524-8394 extension 3. Once the municipal office re-

opens, information about the application can also be obtained in-person between the hours of 8:30am 

and 4:00pm.  

 

http://www.acwtownship.ca/
http://www.acwtownship.ca/property-development/planning-applications/
http://www.acwtownship.ca/property-development/planning-applications/
mailto:cwhalingrae@huroncounty.ca


 

Have Your Say  
Comments and opinions submitted on this proposal, including the originator’s name and address, 

become part of the public record, and may be viewed by the general public and may be published in a 

planning report and Council agenda. 

 

1. You can submit comments, objections or concerns by mail (address above) or email to  

clerk@acwtownship.ca  

2. You can speak during the online public meeting. *Individuals are strongly encouraged to submit 

their comments prior to the meeting for consideration. 

 

How to Access the Public Meeting 
As a result of the COVID-19 Pandemic, the Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh has closed the 

municipal office to the public. The Public Meeting will be held in electronic format. 

 

You are entitled to attend this public meeting electronically to express your views about this application, 

or you may be represented by counsel for that purpose.   

 

For information on how to participate in the Public Meeting, please visit the municipal website at 

http://www.acwtownship.ca/council/council-agendas-4/. Details on participating in the electronic 

meeting will be provided when the agenda is published at the end of the business day on the Friday 

before the meeting. If you have any questions regarding how to participate in the meeting, please phone 

the municipal office at 519-524-4669.  

 

Stay Informed 
If you would like to be notified of the decision, you must make a written request to the Committee of 

Adjustment at the municipal address above, or through email to clerk@acwtownship.ca. This will also 

entitle you to be advised of a possible Local Planning Appeal Tribunal hearing if the decision of this 

application is appealed. 

 

Your Rights 
The applicant, the Minister of Municipal Affairs & Housing, or any other person or public body who has 

an interest in this matter may, within 20 days of the making of the decision, appeal to the Tribunal against 

the decision of the committee. This may be done by filing with the Secretary-Treasurer of the Committee 

a Notice of Appeal setting out the objection to the decision and the reasons in support of the objection. 

This must be accompanied by payment to the Secretary-Treasurer of the fee charged by the Tribunal 

under the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal Act, 2017 as payable on an appeal from a Committee of 

Adjustment to the Tribunal, in accordance with Section 45(12) of the Planning Act. For more information, 

please visit the Local Planning Appeal Tribunal website at https://elto.gov.on.ca/tribunals/lpat.  

   

mailto:clerk@acwtownship.ca
http://www.acwtownship.ca/council/council-agendas-4/
mailto:clerk@acwtownship.ca
https://elto.gov.on.ca/tribunals/lpat


Florence
Typewritten Text
ACW MV08-20 

Florence
Typewritten Text
August 14, 2020

Florence
Typewritten Text
August 17, 2020

























VEOLIA WATER 

Page 1 of 6 

  
Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh Monthly Summary 
 

Month:  June   2020 
 
 

Benmiller: 
 

Item Number Comments 

Adverse Samples 0  

 

Non-compliances 0  

 

Equipment issues:  Maintenance Activities Completed 

 

• 8th Checked well house, day tank, eyewash bottle, fire 

extinguisher and spill containment. Cleaned Cl 17 and Cl2 

analyzers also Cl2 injectors. Ran Auto dialer and generator 

tests. Inspected man hole covers 

 

 

 

General Information:   

Vehicles are checked Monthly – licenses/Ins. /safety kits up to 

date and on/in vehicles and any maintenance deemed necessary. 

 

 

 

 

Alarms  Date:  Alarm: 

 

 

Main breaks/Leaks  Date:  Type: 

 

 

Power outages  Date: 

 

 

Shut-off / Turn-on / 

Complaints 

 Shut-off: 

 

Turn-on: 

 

Complaint: 

 

Locates   

 
 
 
 
 
 

mark
Typewritten Text
7.1.1

mark
Typewritten Text



VEOLIA WATER 

Page 2 of 6 

 

Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh Monthly Summary 
 

Month: June  2020 
 
 

Century Heights: 
 

Item Number Comments 

Adverse Samples   

 

Non-compliances   

 

Equipment issues:  Maintenance Activities Completed 

 

• 4th Cleaned Turbidity Analyzer 

• 15th Verified and  UV sensors #1 and #2. Checked well 

house, day tank, spill containment, eyewash station, and 

fire extinguisher. 

• 17th Replaced Stenner pump #2 and cleaned the Cl2 

injector. 

• 21st Semiannual pressure tank test #1 thru #10 

• 22nd Ran auto dialer and generator tests, cleaned Cl17 

analyzer and changed Cl2 lines 

 

 

 

General Information:   

Vehicles are checked Monthly – licenses/Ins. /safety kits up to 

date and on/in vehicles and any maintenance deemed necessary. 

 

 

 

 

Alarms  Date:  Alarm: 

 

 

Main breaks/Leaks  Date:  Type: 

 

 

Power outages  Date: 

 

 

Shut-off / Turn-on / 

Complaints 

 Shut-off: 

 

Turn-on: 

 

Complaint: 

 

Locates   

 



VEOLIA WATER 

Page 3 of 6 

 

 

Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh Monthly Summary 
 

Month: June   2020 
 
 
Dungannon: 

 

Item Number Comments 

Adverse Samples   

 

Non-compliances   

 

Equipment issues:  Maintenance Activities Completed 

 

• 16th Checked eyewash station, well house building, spill 

containment and day tank. Pressure tanks #1 thru #4 

semiannual check. 

• 21st Changed Cl2 and NaSi lines.  

• 29th Cleaned Cl2 and Cl17 analyzers also cleaned NaSi 

Injector. Ran auto dialer and generator tests 

 

 

 

 

General Information:   

Vehicles are checked Monthly – licenses/Ins. /safety kits up to 

date and on/in vehicles and any maintenance deemed necessary. 

 

 

 

Alarms  Date:  Alarm: 

 

 

Main breaks/Leaks  Date:  Type: 

 

 

Power outages  Date: 

 

12th Hydro Interruption 

 

Shut-off / Turn-on / 

Complaints 

 Shut-off: 

 

Turn-on: 

 

Complaint: 

 

Locates   

 



VEOLIA WATER 

Page 4 of 6 

 
 
 

 
Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh Monthly Summary 
 
 

Month:  June 2020 
 
 

Huron Sands: 
 

Item Number Comments 

Adverse Samples   

 

Non-compliances   

 

Equipment issues:  Maintenance Activities Completed 

 

• 8th Cleaned Cl2 and Cl17 Injectors 

• 22nd Cleaned Cl17 Analyzer. Checked eyewash bottles, well 

house, spill containment and day tank. Ran Auto dialer test 

 

 

 

General Information:   

Vehicles are checked Monthly – licenses/Ins. /safety kits up to 

date and on/in vehicles and any maintenance deemed necessary 

 

Alarms  Date:  Alarm: 

 

 

Main breaks/Leaks  Date:  Type: 

 

 

Power outages  Date: 

 

 

Shut-off / Turn-on / 

Complaints 

 Shut-off: 

 

Turn-on: 

 

Complaint: 

 

Locates   

 
 
 
 
 



VEOLIA WATER 

Page 5 of 6 

 
 
 
On-Going Items / Recommendations: 
 
There were 7  locates  in ACW for March 
 
  * All sites being sanitized weekly as per COVID19 protocol* 
 
 
 

Benmiller: 
   

• Annual Generator Service By Sommers 
 
 
 
 
 

Century Heights:   
 

• UV Reference sensor sent out for calibration  
 

• Annual Generator Service By Sommers 

 

• Annual flow meters  calibration 
•  

 
 
 
 
 

Dungannon:   
 

• Annual Generator Service By Sommers 
• Annual flow meter calibration 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Huron Sands: 
 

• Annual flow meters  calibration 
 
 

 
 
 
 



VEOLIA WATER 

Page 6 of 6 

 
 
 
 

Completed by:  Sarah Telford_______________________ 
Quality Assurance and Compliance Specialist  
Veolia Water Canada 



 

Ministry of the Environment, 
Conservation & Parks 
 
Owen Sound District Office 
 
101 17th Street East, 3rd Floor 
Owen Sound ON  N4K 0A5 
Tel.:     519-371-2901 
Fax.:    519-371-2905 

 

Ministère de l'Environnement, de la Protection de 
la nature et des Parcs  
 
Bureau de district d'Owen Sound 
  
101 17ème rue Est, 3e étage 
Owen Sound ON  N4K 0A5 
Tél. :     519-371-2901 
Téléc. : 519-371-2905 

 

 

 
 
August 21, 2020 
 
Sent by Email: cao@acwtownship.ca 
 
Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanash   
82133 Council Line   
Goderich ON   N7A 3Y2 
 
Attention:  Mark Becker  

CAO/Deputy-Clerk 
 

Re: Benmiller Drinking Water System 
2020/21 Inspection Report #1-NY29R  
Drinking Water Licence #080-104 Issue #5&6 
Drinking Water Works Permit #080-204, Issue #3&4 

  
The enclosed report documents findings of the inspection that was performed on May 8, 2020. 

Two sections of the report, namely “Actions Required” and “Recommended Actions”, specify due 
dates for the submission of information or plans to my attention.  

Please note that “Actions Required” are linked to incidents of non-compliance with regulatory 
requirements contained within an Act, a Regulation, or site-specific approvals, orders or 
instructions; “Recommended Actions” convey information that the owner or operating authority 
should consider implementing in order to conform with existing and emerging industry standards. 

The report includes an Inspection Summary Rating Record as an appendix. This record forms part 
of the ministry’s comprehensive, risk-based inspection process. The rating provides a 
quantitative measure of the inspection results for this specific drinking water system for the 
reporting year. An inspection rating that is less than 100 per cent does not mean that the drinking 
water from the system is unsafe. The primary goals of this assessment are to encourage ongoing 
improvement of drinking water systems and to measure this progress from year to year. 

I would like to remind you that Section 19 of the Safe Drinking Water Act, 2002 (Standard of Care) 
creates a number of obligations for individuals who exercise decision-making authority over 
municipal drinking water systems, including members of municipal councils. “Taking Care of Your 

mark
Typewritten Text
7.1.2

mark
Typewritten Text



 

Drinking Water: A guide for members of municipal council”, a publication found on   the Drinking 
Water Ontario website (https://www.ontario.ca/page/taking-care-your-drinking-water-guide-
members-municipal-councils), provides further information about these obligations.  

Should you have any questions regarding the content of the enclosed report, please do not 
hesitate to contact me. 

Yours truly, 

 
 
 
 
 
Matthew Shannon 
Water Compliance Inspector 
Phone: 519-374-0215 
e-mail: matthew.shannon@ontario.ca 
 
Enclosure 
 
ec:  Lori Holmes, Public Health Manager, Huron Perth Public Health 
 Deb Primeau, Drinking Water Administrative Assistant, Huron Perth Public Health   
 John Graham, Project Manager, Veolia North America 
 Mat Shetler, Watershed Monitoring Technician, Maitland Valley Conservation Authority 
 Mark Smith, Water Compliance Supervisor, MECP 
 

c: File SI-HU-AC-PF-540 (2020) 
 

https://www.ontario.ca/page/taking-care-your-drinking-water-guide-members-municipal-councils
https://www.ontario.ca/page/taking-care-your-drinking-water-guide-members-municipal-councils
https://www.ontario.ca/page/taking-care-your-drinking-water-guide-members-municipal-councils


---
---
---
---

Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks

BENMILLER DRINKING WATER SYSTEM

Inspection Report

Site Number: 220007588
Inspection Number: 1-NY29R
Date of Inspection: May 08, 2020
Inspected By: Matthew Shannon



Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks
Inspection Report

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 

Report Generated for  shannoma  on 21/08/2020 (dd/mm/yyyy) Page 2 of 11
Site #: 220007588
BENMILLER DRINKING WATER SYSTEM
Date of Inspection: 08/05/2020 (dd/mm/yyyy) 



OWNER INFORMATION:
Company Name: ASHFIELD-COLBORNE-WAWANOSH, THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF
Street Number: 82133 Unit Identifier:
Street Name: COUNCIL Line
City: GODERICH
Province: ON Postal Code: N7A 3Y2

     CONTACT INFORMATION

Type: Owner Name: Mark Becker
Phone: (519) 524-4669 Fax: (519) 524-1951
Email: clerk@acwtownship.ca
Title: CAO/Clerk – Treasurer

Type: Operating Authority Name: John Graham
Phone: (519) 524-6583 Fax: (519) 524-9358
Email: john.graham@veolia.com
Title: Project Manager

Type: Operating Authority Compliance Name: Nancy Mayhew
Phone: (519) 524-6583 Fax: (519) 524-9358
Email: nancy.mayhew@veolia.com
Title: Overall Responsible Operator

Type: Operating Authority Name: Sarah Telford
Phone: (519) 524-6583 x317 Fax: (519) 524-9358
Email: sarah.telford@veolia.com
Title: Quality Assurance and Compliance Specialist

INSPECTION DETAILS:

Site Name: BENMILLER DRINKING WATER SYSTEM
Site Address:
County/District: ASHFIELD-COLBORNE-WAWANOSH
MECP District/Area Office: Owen Sound Area Office
Health Unit: HURON COUNTY HEALTH UNIT
Conservation Authority: Maitland Valley Conservation Authority
MNR Office: Guelph District Office
Category: Small Municipal Residential
Site Number: 220007588
Inspection Type: Announced
Inspection Number: 1-NY29R
Date of Inspection: May 08, 2020
Date of Previous Inspection: Jun 05, 2019

 COMPONENTS DESCRIPTION
______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________



Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks
Inspection Report

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 

Report Generated for  shannoma  on 21/08/2020 (dd/mm/yyyy) Page 3 of 11
Site #: 220007588
BENMILLER DRINKING WATER SYSTEM
Date of Inspection: 08/05/2020 (dd/mm/yyyy) 

Site (Name): MOE DWS Mapping
Type: DWS Mapping Point Sub Type:

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Site (Name): Benmiller DWS Source Water
Type: Source Sub Type: Ground Water
Comments:
The Benmiller drinking water system consists of a deep drilled well, a chlorine contact reservoir and a sodium 
hypochlorite disinfection system.  The current production well is located within 40 meters of the pump room vault. The
well was constructed in 2007 but only commissioned into service in February 2015.  A spring well was also previously
able to feed the reservoir but its piping has been disconnected.    

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Site (Name): Benmiller DWS Treatment
Type: Treated Water POE Sub Type: Pumphouse
Comments:
Primary treatment consists of sodium hypochlorite injected into the well discharge line prior to contact in the 91 m3 
storage/chlorine contact reservoir.  During the inspection it was found that disinfection is accomplished using a single 
Stenner metering pump, with another pump at the facility on standby.  The system design calls for one duty and one 
standby pump.    

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Site (Name): Benmiller DWS Distribution
Type: Other Sub Type: Other
Comments:
Pressure is maintained by three submersible high-lift pumps contained within suction tubes, drawing suction from the 
reservoir, and two pressure tanks branched into the distribution system header; one tank with 450 L capacity and the 
other with 1400 L capacity.  The distribution system is equipped with small diameter branched water mains, line 
isolation valves and blow-offs for flushing at each of the branched dead-end lines.
The Benmiller subdivision is located in the Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh.  The well supply feeds 19 
private residences and the Benmiller Inn and Spa resort.  Therefore, the drinking water system falls into the "small 
municipal residential" category under O. Regulation 170/03.    

____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________



Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks
Inspection Report

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 

Report Generated for  shannoma  on 21/08/2020 (dd/mm/yyyy) Page 4 of 11
Site #: 220007588
BENMILLER DRINKING WATER SYSTEM
Date of Inspection: 08/05/2020 (dd/mm/yyyy) 



INSPECTION SUMMARY:

Introduction

• The primary focus of this inspection is to confirm compliance with Ministry of the Environment, 
Conservation and Parks (MECP) legislation as well as evaluating conformance with ministry drinking water 
related policies and guidelines during the inspection period. The ministry utilizes a comprehensive, multi-
barrier approach in the inspection of water systems that focuses on the source, treatment and distribution 
components as well as management practices.

This drinking water system is subject to the legislative requirements of the Safe Drinking Water Act, 2002 
(SDWA) and regulations made therein, including Ontario Regulation 170/03, "Drinking Water Systems" 
(O.Reg. 170/03).  This inspection has been conducted pursuant to Section 81 of the SDWA.

This report is based on a "focused" inspection of the system.  Although the inspection involved fewer 
activities than those normally undertaken in a detailed inspection, it contained critical elements required to 
assess key compliance issues. This system was chosen for a focused inspection because the system's 
performance met the ministry's criteria, most importantly that there were no deficiencies as identified in 
O.Reg. 172/03 over the past 3 years.  The undertaking of a focused inspection at this drinking water system
does not ensure that a similar type of inspection will be conducted at any point in the future.

This inspection report does not suggest that all applicable legislation and regulations were evaluated.  It 
remains the responsibility of the owner to ensure compliance with all applicable legislative and regulatory 
requirements.

On May 5, 2020, Provincial Officer Matthew Shannon initiated an inspection of the Benmiller Drinking Water 
System.  Inspection documentation was provided to the inspector on May 12, 2020 by the operating authority 
Veolia North America (Canada).  
The physical inspection of the Benmiller treatment facility was conducted on July 22, 2020 with assistance provided
by operator Paul Brown.
The inspection review period is June 5, 2019 to May 8, 2020.

Source

• The owner was maintaining the production well(s) in a manner sufficient to prevent entry into the well of 
surface water and other foreign materials.

The well continues to be maintained with a casing greater than 40 cm above ground surface and sealed with a
vermin-proof cap. No visual evidence of voids, holes or ponding were evident around the casing during the July 22, 
2020 inspection.

• Measures were in place to protect the groundwater and/or GUDI source in accordance with any the 
Municipal Drinking Water Licence and Drinking Water Works Permit issued under Part V of the SDWA.

Capacity Assessment

• There was sufficient monitoring of flow as required by the Municipal Drinking Water Licence or Drinking 
Water Works Permit issued under Part V of the SDWA.

• The owner was in compliance with the conditions associated with maximum flow rate or the rated capacity 
conditions in the Municipal Drinking Water Licence issued under Part V of the SDWA.

The rated capacity for this system is 196 m3/day, as authorized under the DWS Licence No. 080-104 and PTTW 



Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks
Inspection Report

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 

Report Generated for  shannoma  on 21/08/2020 (dd/mm/yyyy) Page 5 of 11
Site #: 220007588
BENMILLER DRINKING WATER SYSTEM
Date of Inspection: 08/05/2020 (dd/mm/yyyy) 

Capacity Assessment

#3180-BJKPVH issued December 27, 2019.
There were no flow exceedences found in the data reviewed.  The maximum flow rated occurred on September 22, 
2019
with 107 cubic metres of water used.

Treatment Processes

• The owner had ensured that all equipment was installed in accordance with Schedule A and Schedule C of 
the Drinking Water Works Permit.

• Records indicated that the treatment equipment was operated in a manner that achieved the design 
capabilities required under Ontario Regulation 170/03 or a Drinking Water Works Permit and/or Municipal 
Drinking Water Licence issued under Part V of the SDWA at all times that water was being supplied to 
consumers.

Primary disinfection remains to be achieved in this system through chlorination. The minimum CT necessary to
meet a 2-log inactivation of viruses for this facility, as required in Schedule E of Licence #080-104, has been
calculated to be 4 mg/L*min. (Calculation available in Procedure B-OM-02-0). This has an equivalent minimum
chlorine residual of 0.06mg/L necessary to achieve primary disinfection.
Based on the records reviewed, this facility met current primary treatment requirements at all times during this
inspection period.

• Records confirmed that the water treatment equipment which provides chlorination or chloramination for 
secondary disinfection purposes was operated so that at all times and all locations in the distribution 
system the chlorine residual was never less than 0.05 mg/l free or 0.25 mg/l combined.

Records indicate the lowest measured free chlorine residual, during the inspection review period, was 0.71 mg/L.

• Where an activity has occurred that could introduce contamination, all parts of the drinking water system 
were disinfected in accordance with Schedule B, Condition 2.3 of the Drinking Water Works Permit.  

Treatment Process Monitoring

• Primary disinfection chlorine monitoring was conducted at a location approved by Municipal Drinking 
Water Licence and/or Drinking Water Works Permit issued under Part V of the SDWA, or at/near a location 
where the intended CT has just been achieved.

• The secondary disinfectant residual was measured as required for the distribution system.

• Operators were examining continuous monitoring test results and they were examining the results within 
72 hours of the test.

• All continuous monitoring equipment utilized for sampling and testing required by O. Reg.170/03, or 
Municipal Drinking Water Licence or Drinking Water Works Permit or order, were equipped with alarms or 
shut-off mechanisms that satisfy the standards described in Schedule 6.

• Continuous monitoring equipment that was being utilized to fulfill O. Reg. 170/03 requirements was 
performing tests for the parameters with at least the minimum frequency specified in the Table in Schedule 
6 of O. Reg. 170/03 and recording data with the prescribed format.

• All continuous analysers were calibrated, maintained, and operated, in accordance with the manufacturer's
instructions or the regulation.



Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks
Inspection Report

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 

Report Generated for  shannoma  on 21/08/2020 (dd/mm/yyyy) Page 6 of 11
Site #: 220007588
BENMILLER DRINKING WATER SYSTEM
Date of Inspection: 08/05/2020 (dd/mm/yyyy) 

Treatment Process Monitoring

Verification of the online chlorine analyzer is completed daily with a hand held Hach colorimeter, as per B-OM-13 in
the Operations Manual. Verification of the hand held turbidimeter is conducted at least weekly, as per the
schedule outlined in the same procedure.

Operations Manuals

• The operations and maintenance manuals contained plans, drawings and process descriptions sufficient 
for the safe and efficient operation of the system.

• The operations and maintenance manuals met the requirements of the Drinking Water Works Permit and 
Municipal Drinking Water Licence issued under Part V of the SDWA.

Logbooks

• Records or other record keeping mechanisms confirmed that operational testing not performed by 
continuous monitoring equipment was being done by a certified operator, water quality analyst, or person 
who suffices the requirements of O. Reg. 170/03 7-5.

Security

• The owner had provided security measures to protect components of the drinking water system.

Pumphouse doors are kept locked at all times an operator is not onsite.  The treatment facility also has a motion 
sensor light.  The operator indicated the have been no signs of vandalism at the site.

Certification and Training

• The overall responsible operator had been designated for each subsystem.

The designated overall responsible operator is John Graham.

• Operators-in-charge had been designated for all subsystems which comprised the drinking water system.

• All operators possessed the required certification.

• Only certified operators made adjustments to the treatment equipment.

Water Quality Monitoring

• All microbiological water quality monitoring requirements for distribution samples prescribed by 
legislation were being met.

Distribution samples were collected and analysed every two (2) weeks during the time period reviewed, as 
prescribed by
Schedule 11, O.Reg. 170/03.

• All inorganic water quality monitoring requirements prescribed by legislation were conducted within the 
required frequency.

Inorganic sampling for parameters listed in Schedule 23, O.Reg. 170 are required every sixty (60) months. There 
were no samples taken during the time period reviewed. The most current sample event occurred on June 21, 
2016. All
sample results were within the prescribed limits.



Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks
Inspection Report

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 

Report Generated for  shannoma  on 21/08/2020 (dd/mm/yyyy) Page 7 of 11
Site #: 220007588
BENMILLER DRINKING WATER SYSTEM
Date of Inspection: 08/05/2020 (dd/mm/yyyy) 

Water Quality Monitoring

• All organic water quality monitoring requirements prescribed by legislation were conducted within the 
required frequency.

Organic sampling for parameters listed in Schedule 23, O.Reg. 170 are required every sixty (60) months. There 
were no samples taken during the time period reviewed. The most current sample event occurred on June 21, 
2016. All
sample results were within the prescribed limits.

• All haloacetic acid water quality monitoring requirements prescribed by legislation are being conducted 
within the required frequency and at the required location.

Haloacetic acid samples are collected and analysed on a quarterly basis in accordance with Ontario Regulation 
170/03 Schedule 13.  All results have been below the method detection limit of 5.3 ug/L.

• All trihalomethane water quality monitoring requirements prescribed by legislation were conducted within 
the required frequency and at the required location.

The Benmiller drinking water system is currently exempt from sampling for 8 consecutive quarters, starting in 
January 2020.  The system met the conditions required in Ontario Regulation 170/03 Schedule 13-6 to reduce 
sampling.  The last running annual average concentration for trihalomethanes was 5.35 ug/L.

• All nitrate/nitrite water quality monitoring requirements prescribed by legislation were conducted within the
required frequency for the DWS.

• All sodium water quality monitoring requirements prescribed by legislation were conducted within the 
required frequency.

Sodium sampling is required every sixty (60) months. There were no samples required during this inspection
review period.
The most current sodium sample date was on June 21, 2016. The sodium concentration was 18.2 mg/L, which is 
below the Ontario Regulation 170/03 reporting threshold of 20.0 mg/L.

• All fluoride water quality monitoring requirements prescribed by legislation were conducted within the 
required frequency.

Fluoride sampling is required every sixty (60) months and is naturally high in this area. The most current fluoride
sample dates were on August 22, 2017 and August 25, 2017 both with results of 1.84 mg/L. These were above the
ODWQS of 1.5 mg/L and were reported to both MECP and the public health unit. The Huron County Health Unit 
provided a letter for the system's residents outlining the effects of high fluoride in drinking water.

• All water quality monitoring requirements imposed by the MDWL or DWWP issued under Part V of the 
SDWA were being met.

• Records confirmed that chlorine residual tests were being conducted at the same time and at the same 
location that microbiological samples were obtained.

Water Quality Assessment

• Records did not show that all water sample results taken during the inspection review period did not 
exceed the values of tables 1, 2 and 3 of the Ontario Drinking Water Quality Standards (O.Reg. 169/03).

In July 2019, a distribution sample had a total coliform concentration of 4 cfu/100ml.  The Ontario Drinking Water 
Quality Standard for total coliform is non-detect or 0 cfu/100ml.  The adverse result was reported to MECP and the 
local health unit.  Resamples were negative for total coliform and E. coli.



Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks
Inspection Report

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 

Report Generated for  shannoma  on 21/08/2020 (dd/mm/yyyy) Page 8 of 11
Site #: 220007588
BENMILLER DRINKING WATER SYSTEM
Date of Inspection: 08/05/2020 (dd/mm/yyyy) 

Reporting & Corrective Actions

• Corrective actions (as per Schedule 18) had been taken to address adverse conditions, including any other 
steps that were directed by the Medical Officer of Health.

The operating authority took the required corrective actions to address the total coliform adverse water quality 
incident per Ontario Regulation 170/03 Schedule 18-6..

• All required notifications of adverse water quality incidents were immediately provided as per O. Reg. 
170/03 16-6.

• Where required continuous monitoring equipment used for the monitoring of chlorine residual and/or 
turbidity triggered an alarm or an automatic shut-off, a qualified person responded in a timely manner and 
took appropriate actions.



Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks
Inspection Report

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 

Report Generated for  shannoma  on 21/08/2020 (dd/mm/yyyy) Page 9 of 11
Site #: 220007588
BENMILLER DRINKING WATER SYSTEM
Date of Inspection: 08/05/2020 (dd/mm/yyyy) 


NON-COMPLIANCE WITH REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS AND ACTIONS REQUIRED

This section provides a summary of all non-compliance with regulatory requirements identified during the 
inspection period, as well as actions required to address these issues. Further details pertaining to these items 
can be found in the body of the inspection report.
 
         Not Applicable



Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks
Inspection Report

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 

Report Generated for  shannoma  on 21/08/2020 (dd/mm/yyyy) Page 10 of 11
Site #: 220007588
BENMILLER DRINKING WATER SYSTEM
Date of Inspection: 08/05/2020 (dd/mm/yyyy) 



SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS AND BEST PRACTICE ISSUES

This section provides a summary of all recommendations and best practice issues identified during the inspection 
period.  Details pertaining to these items can be found in the body of the inspection report.  In the interest of 
continuous improvement in the interim, it is recommended that owners and operators develop an awareness of the
following issues and consider measures to address them.
 
         Not Applicable



Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks
Inspection Report

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________
 

Report Generated for  shannoma  on 21/08/2020 (dd/mm/yyyy) Page 11 of 11
Site #: 220007588
BENMILLER DRINKING WATER SYSTEM
Date of Inspection: 08/05/2020 (dd/mm/yyyy) 



SIGNATURES
 _____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Inspected By: Signature: (Provincial Officer)

 Matthew Shannon  

_____________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

Reviewed & Approved By: Signature: (Supervisor)

 Mark Smith

Review & Approval Date:

Note: This inspection does not in any way suggest that there is or has been compliance with applicable legislation and 
regulations as they apply or may apply to this facility. It is, and remains, the responsibility of the owner and/or operating
authority to ensure compliance with all applicable legislative and regulatory requirements.

End of Report

SMITHMA5
Stamp

SMITHMA5
Typewritten Text

SMITHMA5
Typewritten Text
August 21, 2020



Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks
    Drinking Water Inspection Report 

APPENDIX A

       INSPECTION SUMMARY RATING RECORD 

pierceli
Sticky Note
Cancelled set by pierceli

pierceli
Sticky Note
Cancelled set by pierceli



Ministry of the Environment - Inspection Summary Rating Record (Reporting Year - 2020-2021)

DWS Name: BENMILLER DRINKING WATER SYSTEM
DWS Number: 220007588

DWS Owner: Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh, The Corporation Of The Township Of
Municipal Location: Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh

Regulation: O.REG 170/03
Category: Small Municipal Residential System

Type Of Inspection: Focused
Inspection Date: May 8, 2020

Ministry Office: Owen Sound District Office

                                   
Maximum Question Rating: 474

              
Inspection Module Non-Compliance Rating

Source 0 / 14
Capacity Assessment 0 / 30
Treatment Processes 0 / 77
Operations Manuals 0 / 28
Logbooks 0 / 14
Certification and Training 0 / 42
Water Quality Monitoring 0 / 91
Reporting & Corrective Actions 0 / 66
Treatment Process Monitoring 0 / 112

TOTAL 0 / 474
           

Inspection Risk Rating 0.00%
                

FINAL INSPECTION RATING: 100.00%

Inspection Rating Record Generated On 21-AUG-20 (Inspection ID: 1-NY29R).
R:\Public\DW\DW-08 Compliance\Shared Comp Data\Inspection Ratings 2021\Mark Smith\2021 BENMILLER DRINKING WATER SYSTEM 1-NY29R.pdf



Ministry of the Environment - Detailed Inspection Rating Record (Reporting Year - 2020-2021)

DWS Name: BENMILLER DRINKING WATER SYSTEM
DWS Number: 220007588

DWS Owner: Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh, The Corporation Of The Township Of
Municipal Location: Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh

Regulation: O.REG 170/03
Category: Small Municipal Residential System

Type Of Inspection: Focused
Inspection Date: May 8, 2020

Ministry Office: Owen Sound District Office
                                   
              
             
           

Maximum Question Rating: 474
           

Inspection Risk Rating 0.00%
                

FINAL INSPECTION RATING: 100.00%

Inspection Rating Record Generated On 21-AUG-20 (Inspection ID: 1-NY29R).
R:\Public\DW\DW-08 Compliance\Shared Comp Data\Inspection Ratings 2021\Mark Smith\2021 BENMILLER DRINKING WATER SYSTEM 1-NY29R.pdf



Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks
     Drinking Water Inspection Report 

APPENDIX B 

     REFERENCE GUIDE FOR STAKEHOLDERS 



PIBS 8990b01 

 

Key Reference and Guidance Material for 
March 2019 

Municipal Residential Drinking Water Systems 
Many useful materials are available to help you 

operate your drinking water system. Below is a list 

of key materials owners and operators of municipal 

residential drinking water systems frequently use. 

To access these materials online click on their 

titles in the table below or use your web browser to 

search for their titles. Contact the Ministry if you 

need assistance or have questions at 1-866-793-

2588 or waterforms@ontario.ca. 

For more information on Ontario’s drinking water 

visit www.ontario.ca/drinkingwater 

 

PUBLICATION TITLE 
PUBLICATION 
NUMBER 

FORMS:  
Drinking Water System Profile Information  
Laboratory Services Notification 

Adverse Test Result Notification   

 

012-2149E 

012-2148E 

012-4444E 

Taking Care of Your Drinking Water: A Guide for Members of Municipal Councils Website 

Procedure for Disinfection of Drinking Water in Ontario Website  

Strategies for Minimizing the Disinfection Products Trihalomethanes and Haloacetic Acids Website  

Filtration Processes Technical Bulletin Website  

Ultraviolet Disinfection Technical Bulletin Website  

Guide for Applying for Drinking Water Works Permit Amendments, &   License 
Amendments  Website 

Certification Guide for Operators and Water Quality Analysts  Website 

Guide to Drinking Water Operator Training Requirements 9802E 

Community Sampling and Testing for Lead: Standard and Reduced Sampling and Eligibility for 
Exemption Website 

Drinking Water System Contact List 7128E01 

Ontario's Drinking Water Quality Management Standard - Pocket Guide Website 

Watermain Disinfection Procedure  Website 

List of Licensed Laboratories  Website 

mailto:waterforms@ontario.ca
http://www.forms.ssb.gov.on.ca/mbs/ssb/forms/ssbforms.nsf/FormDetail?OpenForm&ACT=RDR&TAB=PROFILE&SRCH=2&ENV=WWE&TIT=&NO=012-2149E
http://www.forms.ssb.gov.on.ca/mbs/ssb/forms/ssbforms.nsf/FormDetail?OpenForm&ACT=RDR&TAB=PROFILE&SRCH=2&ENV=WWE&TIT=&NO=012-2148E
http://www.forms.ssb.gov.on.ca/mbs/ssb/forms/ssbforms.nsf/FormDetail?OpenForm&ACT=RDR&TAB=PROFILE&SRCH=2&ENV=WWE&TIT=&NO=012-2148E
http://www.forms.ssb.gov.on.ca/mbs/ssb/forms/ssbforms.nsf/FormDetail?OpenForm&ACT=RDR&TAB=PROFILE&SRCH=&ENV=WWE&TIT=4444&NO=012-4444E
http://www.ontario.ca/document/taking-care-your-drinking-water-guide-members-municipal-councils
http://www.ontario.ca/document/procedure-disinfection-drinking-water-ontario
http://www.ontario.ca/document/strategies-minimizing-disinfection-products-trihalomethanes-and-haloacetic-acids
http://www.ontario.ca/document/filtration-processes-technical-bulletin
http://www.ontario.ca/document/ultraviolet-disinfection-technical-bulletin
http://www.ontario.ca/document/guide-applying-drinking-water-works-permit-amendments-licence-amendments-licence-renewals-and-new
http://www.ontario.ca/document/guide-applying-drinking-water-works-permit-amendments-licence-amendments-licence-renewals-and-new
http://www.ontario.ca/document/certification-guide-operators-and-water-quality-analysts
http://owwco.ca/Guidelines/Guide%20to%20Drinking%20Water%20Operator%20Training%20Requirements%20in%20O.%20Reg.%20128%2004_online.pdf
http://www.ontario.ca/document/community-sampling-and-testing-lead-standard-and-reduced-sampling-and-eligibility-exemption
http://www.ontario.ca/document/community-sampling-and-testing-lead-standard-and-reduced-sampling-and-eligibility-exemption
http://www.ontario.ca/document/community-sampling-and-testing-lead-standard-and-reduced-sampling-and-eligibility-exemption
https://www.ontario.ca/document/drinking-water-system-contact-list
https://www.ontario.ca/page/ontarios-drinking-water-quality-management-standard-pocket-guide
https://www.ontario.ca/page/water-main-disinfection-procedure
https://www.ontario.ca/page/list-licensed-laboratories


 
GODERICH MOUNT FOREST SARNIA 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

To: Florence Witherspoon, Clerk  

Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh 

Re: Update on Dungannon Arsenic Treatment and Next Steps 

File #: 12032 

Date: August 25, 2020 

 
Background 
 
The purpose of this Memo is to provide an update regarding recent developments in 
Dungannon so that Council can begin planning for the next step in implementing a treatment 
system.  B. M. Ross and Associates have now had several inquiries from the federal 
government regarding the funding application, so the potential for funding is looking promising.  
Once we receive official word, it will be important to start detailed design immediately in order to 
ensure a treatment system is in place prior to the expiry of the current temporary regulatory 
relief (January 1, 2022).   
 
Filter Options 
 
Regarding the design, there are still two potential approaches to consider: 
 

1. Conventional media filters which would require backwashing. 
2. Cartridge filters. 

  
For the conventional media filters and backwashing option, ACW has no place to dispose of 
backwash wastewater within the Township boundaries.  Early estimates suggested that hauling 
the wastewater would cost in excess of $6,000/year.  Assuming the Township is able to find 
another Municipality to accept the backwash wastewater, we believe disposal costs would be at 
least $24/m3 which would equate to more than $4,000 annually.  The cost of the treatment 
system, media, installation, etc. would be in addition to those costs.  Because of the backwash 
waste a conventional filter system will require a Class EA.  A cartridge filter system will not. 
 
Regarding cartridge filters; pilot testing completed by Veolia and the Walkerton Clean Water 
Centre (WCWC) has shown a 50-5 micron filter, followed by a 1 micron filter should be sufficient 
to remove enough arsenic to achieve treated water that is safely below the new limit of 10 µg/L.  
As noted in the June 1, 2020 memo, based on performance during the pilot testing, we estimate 
the 50-5 micron filter will last for approximately 2-3 days and the 1 micron filter will last for 
approximately 10-14 days.  Based on pricing received earlier this year (i.e. $28/50-5 micron filter 
and $30/1 micron filter) this works out to an estimated $5,250/year in replacement filters.  We 
are confident the supply and installation costs of a cartridge filter system will be less than a 
conventional media backwashing system. 
 

Memo 

From:  Ryan DeVries 

rdevries@bmross.net 

 

B. M. ROSS AND ASSOCIATES LIMITED 

Engineers and Planners 

62 North Street, Goderich, ON  N7A 2T4 

p. (519) 524-2641   www.bmross.net 

mark
Typewritten Text
7.1.3

mark
Typewritten Text



- 2 -

Z:\12032-ACW-Dungannon_Well_Arsenic\WP\12032-2020-08-26-Memo re Arsenic Treatment.docx 

The operators have also indicated cartridge filters will be simpler to operate than conventional 
media filters.  They have also indicated that the extra effort involved with maintaining the 
cartridge filter system could result in an extra hour/day of Veolia time.  Managing conventional 
filters would require at least that much extra effort. 

There was some concern that the spent filters might be classified as a hazardous waste and 
need to be disposed of at a specialized landfill (i.e. Clean Harbours in Sarnia), which would 
significantly increase disposal costs.  Veolia submitted one of the spent 50-5 micron filters for 
toxicity characteristic leaching procedure (TCLP) analysis and results indicate that the 
cartridges can be disposed of at a local landfill.  We have not included disposal costs in the 
above estimate but, at what will likely be 2m3/year in waste, costs for disposal should be 
minimal. 

Next Steps 

Once the Township hears back on the funding, we will need direction regarding whether to 
proceed with the cartridge filter option, or continue to investigate the conventional media filter 
alternative.  

Given that the pilot testing has shown the cartridge filters can successfully remove enough of 
the arsenic, and because the capital and ongoing maintenance costs are anticipated to be lower 
than conventional filters; our recommendation is to proceed with a design based on cartridge 
filters.  

Should you have any questions or require additional information, please do not hesitate to 
contact the undersigned. 

B. M. ROSS AND ASSOCIATES LIMITED

Per ____________________________ 
Ryan DeVries, P. Eng. 

RPD:hv 



 

 
 

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF 

ASHFIELD-COLBORNE-WAWANOSH 

 

                                                   BY-LAW NUMBER 56-2020 

 

Being a by-law to authorize the execution of a Temporary Dwelling Agreement between 

Wilkins Blake Heritage Farms and the Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh 

 

 

WHEREAS Zoning By-law 32-2008 permits one temporary dwelling within the AG1 Zone;  

 

AND WHEREAS Zoning By-law 32-2008 requires that the owner of the temporary 

dwelling, or any other person, to enter into an agreement with the Township dealing with 

such matters related to the temporary use; 

 

AND WHEREAS the Council of the Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh deems it 

necessary and desirable to execute an agreement with Wilkins Blake Heritage Farms; 

 

NOW THEREFORE, the Corporation of the Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh 

enacts as follows: 

 

1. That the Agreement as attached hereto as Schedule A forms part of this By-law. 

  

2. That the Mayor and Clerk are hereby authorized to execute and affix the Corporate 

Seal to enter into an Agreement with Wilkins Blake Heritage Farms. 

 

 
Read a FIRST and SECOND time this 1st day of September 2020. 

 

 
Read a THIRD TIME and FINALLY PASSED this 1st day of September 2020. 
 

 

 

 

                                                      ______________________________________ 

                                                      Mayor, Glen McNeil 

 

 

 

                                                                  ______________________________________ 

           CAO/Deputy Clerk, Mark Becker 

 

 

mark
Typewritten Text
7.2.1

mark
Typewritten Text

mark
Typewritten Text
14.4

mark
Typewritten Text



Florence
Typewritten Text
Schedule A to By-law 56-2020

Florence
Typewritten Text











COUNCIL REPORT 
From:  Florence Witherspoon, Clerk 

Date:  September 1, 2020 

Subject: Tenders for the Warren Zinn Municipal 

Drain 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the Council of the Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh award the Warren Zinn 

Drain 2020 construction tender to Robinson’s Farm Drainage Ltd. in the amount of $265,975 

plus HST. 

 

BACKGROUND: 

Council provisionally adopted By-law 45-2020 for the Warren Zinn Municipal Drain on July 14, 

2020 Tender documents were distributed to contractors and were received up until August 5, 

2020 at 1:00 pm and were opened shortly thereafter by Treasurer Ellen McManus, Tax Clerk 

Kaitlin Bos and CAO/Deputy Clerk Mark Becker.  

 

The following tenders were received: 

 

Contractor Amount Begin Date End Date 

A.G. Hayter Contracting Ltd. $304,628 December 1, 2020 April 30, 2021 

Marquardt Farm Drainage Ltd. $287,297 July 1, 2021 August 15, 2021 

Robinson Farm Drainage Ltd. $265,975 October 15, 2020 December 20, 2020 

Agdrain Inc. $324,520 July 15, 2021 October 15, 2021 

 

COMMENT: 

The engineer’s estimate for the construction of the project is approximately $328,260. 

 

Stephen Brickman, the engineer for the Warren Zinn Municipal Drain 2020 has reviewed the 

tender documents submitted and supports awarding the construction contract to the low 

bidder, Robinson Farm Drainage Ltd.  

 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

___________________________ 

Florence Witherspoon, Clerk 

mark
Typewritten Text
7.4.1

mark
Typewritten Text



Minutes 

Court of Revision 

Warren Zinn Municipal Drain 2020 

August 10, 2020 
 

The Court of Revision for the Warren Zinn Municipal Drain 2020 was held on August 10, 2020 at 

1:00 pm via Zoom. 

 

Members were Glen McNeil, Bill Vanstone and Wayne Forster.  Florence Witherspoon was the 

Clerk for the Court of Revision. Gerald Logtenberg and Jurjen Van Beets were present. 

 

1. Call to Order 

 

Chair Glen McNeil called the meeting to order at 1:00 pm.  

 

2. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest 

 

Members of the Court of Revision were asked if anyone had a conflict to declare. None 

were noted.  

 

3. Appeals and Notice to Landowners 

 

The Chair asked the Clerk of any appeals were submitted. The Clerk replied that one appeal 

was submitted. Notice of the Sitting of this Court was sent to all landowners assessed on 

July 16, 2020. There were no late appeals submitted.    

 

The Chair further asked if there were any verbal appeals to be heard at the hearing today. 

None were submitted.  

 

The appeal was submitted by Gerald Logtenberg, requesting a revision on the assessment 

as the back of his field was drained away from the watershed of the Warren Zinn Drain.  

 

Engineer Steven Brickman advised that even if lands are drained out of the watershed, they 

must still be assessed as tile drainages fails to remove all the flow. The information 

provided by Mr. Logtenberg provides evidence that, if it was received prior to the 

preparation of the report, would have resulted in an increase of assessment, not a 

reduction. 

 

Mr. Logtenburg withdrew his appeal to the Court of Revision. 

 

4. Confirming of the Assessment Schedule 

 

 Moved by Bill Vanstone 

 Seconded by Wayne Forster 

THAT the Court of Revision for the Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh confirms 

the assessment schedule for the Warren Zinn Municipal Drain 2020.  

Carried 

5. Adjournment 

 

 Moved by Wayne Forester 

 Seconded by Bill Vanstone 

THAT the Court of Revision for the Warren Zinn Municipal Drain 2020 is hereby closed at 

1:36 pm.  

Carried 

mark
Typewritten Text
7.4.2

mark
Typewritten Text



mark
Typewritten Text
7.4.3

mark
Typewritten Text

mark
Typewritten Text
14.5

mark
Typewritten Text





 
 
 

 
 

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF 

ASHFIELD-COLBORNE-WAWANOSH 

 

BY-LAW NUMBER 54-2020 

 

       BEING A BY-LAW TO ESTABLISH AND APPOINT A FULL TIME  

      FACILITY OPERATOR & PARKS MAINTAINER POSITION     

      FOR THE LUCKNOW AND DISTRICT JOINT RECREATION BOARD 

             

 

   WHEREAS it is deemed desirable to appoint a Full Time Facility Operator & Parks     

   Maintainer for the Lucknow & District Joint Recreation Board; 

 

   NOW THEREFORE the Municipal Council of the Corporation of the Township of Ashfield- 

   Colborne-Wawanosh ENACTS as follows; 

 

1.  That the position of a Full Time Facility Operator & Parks Maintainer is hereby  

       established and appoints Tanner Stevenson effective September 8, 2020. 

 

2.  That this by-law comes into full force and effect upon its final passage. 

 

 
 
 
   Read a FIRST and SECOND time this 1st day of September, 2020. 

 

 

 

   Read a THIRD TIME and FINALLY PASSED this 1st day of September, 2020. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

      ______________________________________ 

      Mayor, Glen McNeil 

 

 

 

 

      _______________________________________ 

      CAO/Deputy-Clerk, Mark Becker 

mark
Typewritten Text
14.1

mark
Typewritten Text

mark
Typewritten Text
7.5.1

mark
Typewritten Text



COUNCIL REPORT 
From: Ellen McManus, Treasurer 
Date:  August 25, 2020 
Subject: Enabling Accessibility Fund  

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
For information purposes only. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Enabling Accessibility Fund (EAF) provides funding for projects that make communities and 
workplaces more accessible for persons with disabilities. The EAF aims to create more opportunities 
for persons with disabilities to take part in community activities, programs and services, or to access 
employment. The Township applied for funding under the small projects component of the EAF to 
support accessibility upgrades as part of the office renovations and addition.  
 
COMMENT: 
The Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh has been approved for funding for accessibility 
upgrades to the township office.  The $100,000 grant will cover $65,000 of accessibility upgrade costs 
included in the original office renovation plans and $35,000 in additional accessibility features that 
would not be feasible without this funding.  
 
Planned accessibility items: 
- Main entrance vestibule ramp, automatic door operator and controls 
- One new accessible staff washroom  
- Barrier-free reception area with automatic door operator and controls 
- Barrier-free kitchen area 

 
Additional accessibility items: 
- New ramp to staff entrance (back door) with automatic door operator and controls 
- Upgrade two existing public washrooms to universal accessible design 
- Accessible doors with power operators for public access spaces (council chambers, waiting room 

area 
 

This EAF grant will allow the Township to make significant accessibility upgrades as part of the office 
renovation and addition, as recommended by County of Huron Accessibility Advisory Committee. 
These upgrades will ensure that the Township office, both a workplace and community space, is 
accessible to all.  

 
OTHERS CONSULTED: 
Mark Becker, CAO/Deputy-Clerk 
Brett Pollock, Chief Building Official 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
Ellen McManus, Treasurer 

mark
Typewritten Text
7.5.2

mark
Typewritten Text



 
COUNCIL REPORT 
From:               Brian VanOsch,  

                       Public Works Superintendent 

Date:                Aug 27, 2020 

Subject:          Public Works Activity Report  

 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That the report be received and filed. 

 

INFORMATION: 

 

 

1.   Work has started on Hills Road Culvert Replacement by Theo Vandenberk  

      Construction Inc. 
 
2.   Dobson Road Maintenance have completed crack sealing and spray patching of our  

      paved roads. 

 

3   Top soil and sidewalk base gravel have been completed at the Dungannon Park.   

     The new kiosk has been installed. 
 

4.   Public Works Staff are working on sidewalks in Dungannon. 

 

5.   The barn on the Reid Farm has been removed by C&R Barn Removal and Salvage. 

 

6.  Public Works Staff have begun roadside grass cutting. 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 
   Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

 

 

   Brian VanOsch 

   Public Works Superintendent 

 

mark
Typewritten Text
7.6.1

mark
Typewritten Text



 

1 

 

 

                                                                                                                  234-2020-3359 
            

August 12, 2020 
 
Mayor Glen McNeil 
Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh 
82133 Council Line R.R. 5  
Goderich ON  N7A 3Y2 
 
Dear Mayor McNeil: 
 

On July 27, 2020, as part of the federal-provincial Safe Restart Agreement, the Ontario 

government announced that it had secured up to $4 billion in emergency assistance to 

provide Ontario’s 444 municipalities with the support they need to respond to COVID-

19. I am writing to you today to provide further details on this funding investment.  

Municipalities play a key role in delivering critical services that Ontarians rely on and are 

at the frontlines of a safe reopening of the economy. This investment will provide 

support to municipalities and public transit operators to help them address financial 

pressures related to COVID-19, maintain critical services and protect vulnerable people 

as the province safely and gradually opens.  It includes:  

• Up to $2 billion to support municipal operating pressures, and  

• Up to $2 billion to support municipal transit systems. 

The Honourable Caroline Mulroney, Minister of Transportation, will provide more 

information on the transit stream of this funding.  

I would also like to acknowledge the Federal government in their role in this historic 

agreement.  As Premier Ford has indicated, “by working together, we have united the 

country in the face of the immense challenges brought on by COVID-19 and secured a 

historic deal with the federal government to ensure a strong recovery for Ontario and for 

Canada”. 

Under the municipal operating stream, $1.39 billion will be available to Ontario’s 

municipalities to address operating pressures and local needs. This funding will be 

allocated in two phases: 50% allocated in Phase 1 for all municipalities, and 50% 

allocated in Phase 2 for municipalities that require additional funding.   

 

Ministry of  

Municipal Affairs 
and Housing   

 
Office of the Minister 
777 Bay Street, 17th Floor  
Toronto ON   M7A 2J3  
Tel.: 416 585-7000   
  

  

Ministère des 

Affaires municipales  

et du Logement   
 
Bureau du ministre 
777, rue Bay, 17e étage 

Toronto ON   M7A 2J3 
Tél. : 416 585-7000 

 

mark
Typewritten Text
8.1

mark
Typewritten Text



 

2 

 

The Safe Restart Agreement also includes a second phase of Social Services Relief 

Funding (SSRF) totalling $362 million. This is in addition to significant investments 

made earlier to the SSRF and in support of public health. Details will be outlined in a 

letter to Service Managers in the coming days. 

Municipal Operating Funding Phase 1: Immediate Funding for Municipal Pressures 

Phase 1 of this funding will be allocated on a per household basis and I am pleased to 

share that the Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh will receive a payment of 

$189,100 to support your COVID-19 operating costs and pressures. 

Please note that your municipality is accountable for using this funding for the purpose 

of addressing your priority COVID-19 operating costs and pressures. If the amount of 

the funding exceeds your municipality’s 2020 COVID-19 operating costs and pressures, 

the province’s expectation is that your municipality will place the excess funding into 

reserves to be accessed to support COVID-19 operating costs and pressures that you 

may continue to incur in 2021. Your municipality will be expected to report back to the 

province in March 2021 with details on your 2020 COVID-19 operating costs and 

pressures, your overall 2020 financial position, and the use of the provincial funds in a 

template to be provided by the ministry. More details on this reporting will be shared in 

the coming weeks. 

In the meantime, I am requesting that your municipal treasurer sign the 

acknowledgement below and return the signed copy to the ministry by email by 

September 11, 2020 to Municipal.Programs@ontario.ca. Please note that we must 

receive this acknowledgement before making a payment to your municipality. We intend 

to make payments to municipalities in September, subject to finalizing details. 

Phase 2: Funding for Additional Municipal Pressures 

I anticipate that the funding our government is providing through Phase 1 of the 

municipal operating stream will be sufficient to address COVID-19 costs and pressures 

for most municipalities. However, we recognize that some municipalities have 

experienced greater financial impacts arising from COVID-19 than others. As a result, 

we are offering a second phase of funding to those municipalities that can demonstrate 

that 2020 COVID-19 operating costs and pressures exceed their Phase 1 per 

household allocation. 

To be considered for this Phase 2 funding, municipalities will be required to submit 

reports outlining their COVID-19 operating costs and pressures in a template to be 

provided by the ministry. These reports will be due by October 30, 2020. 

Municipalities that require additional time to submit their report are asked to reach out to 

their Municipal Services Office contact by October 30, 2020 to request an extension to 

November 6, 2020. Please note that the ministry is unable to consider municipal 

requests for Phase 2 funding if the municipality has not submitted its report by 

November 6, 2020.  

mailto:Municipal.Programs@ontario.ca
mailto:Municipal.Programs@ontario.ca


 

3 

 

A template for this municipal report and request for consideration for Phase 2 funding 

will be provided shortly and will require: 

1. Information about measures the municipality has undertaken to reduce financial 

pressures (e.g. use of reserves, cost saving measures); 

2. Explanation of how the municipality applied or plans to spend Phase 1 funding 

towards COVID-19 operating costs and pressures; 

3. A year-end forecast of COVID-19 operating costs and pressures; 

4. Actual COVID-related impacts as of the end of Q3 of the municipal fiscal year 

(September 30, 2020); 

5. Treasurer’s statement as to accuracy of reporting; 

6. Resolution of Council seeking additional funding. 

Municipalities who are eligible and approved to receive funding under Phase 2 will be 

informed before the end of the calendar year and can expect to receive a payment in 

early 2021. 

Our government will continue to be a champion for communities as we chart a path to a 

strong economic recovery. We thank all 444 Ontario municipal heads of council for their 

support through our negotiations with the federal government. Working together, we will 

ensure Ontario gets back on track.  

Sincerely, 

 
 

Steve Clark 

Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing  

 

c. Municipal Treasurer and Municipal CAO 

 

By signing below, I acknowledge that the per household allocation of $189,100 is 

provided to the Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh for the purpose of assisting 

with COVID-19 costs and pressures and that the province expects any funds not 

required for this purpose in 2020 will be put into reserves to support potential COVID-19 

costs and pressures in 2021. I further acknowledge that the Township of Ashfield-

Colborne-Wawanosh is expected to report back to the province on 2020 COVID-19 

costs and pressures and the use of this funding.  

Name: 

Title: 

Signature:  

Date:

 



mark
Typewritten Text
8.2 

mark
Typewritten Text

mark
Typewritten Text

mark
Typewritten Text

mark
Typewritten Text





mark
Typewritten Text
8.2

mark
Typewritten Text
(a)

mark
Typewritten Text

mark
Typewritten Text













mark
Typewritten Text
8.2 (b)

mark
Typewritten Text









Improving Connectivity for Ontario Program 
August 17, 2020 

Call Ron Van Holst, 416-660-8399 with your questions  

Letter to Council; 

CIAO Internet, a division of Cascara Energy, is a new internet company that is partnering with 

service providers in your area to bring multi-gigabit internet services to residents in under-

served areas.  CIAO Internet is registered with the CRTC as a non-dominant carrier. Our 

super-power is in creating partnerships that will enable us to deliver the fastest internet in 

Canada at competitive prices.  

Right now, we need your help with a “Letter of Interest” from your mayor before August 21st. 

We need your letter so we can add your community to the list of communities supporting our 

application for the Improving Connectivity for Ontario (ICON) Program. 

What is the ICON Program? 

The Province of Ontario is supporting the expansion of broadband and cellular infrastructure 

in Ontario by investing $150 million over four years through the Improving Connectivity for 

Ontario program. The ICON program will promote industry partnerships to encourage 

solutions that leverage investments across sectors to meet the connectivity needs of 

communities that do not have adequate access to connection speeds of at least 50 Mbps. 

Why support CIAO Internet? 

Due to competitive market dynamics, CIAO Internet is currently operating in stealth mode, 

but you will likely recognize the names of the energy and construction companies that we are 

working with.  Our governments recognize that innovative services come from partnerships 

between large and small companies, sometimes from different sectors to create new 

opportunities.  CIAO’s strategy is to bundle internet and energy services during the 

engineering, construction, and commissioning phases to provide better services; specifically, 

internet connection speeds of at least 1000 Mbps.   

CIAO Internet is not asking for money. However, due to the looming deadline, we are asking 

for a quick “Letter of Interest” from your mayor to support our ICON grant application.  We 

will follow up with more material for your next council meeting where we can outline more of 

our strategy and discuss our partnerships with the objective to gain your support with 

agreements for right-of-way access for deployment of new internet and energy infrastructure 

in your community. CIAO is building an “Open Access” broadband network, which means 

that any internet service provider may lease the infrastructure that we are building. 

Sincerely, 

 

Robert Croghan,  

CEO, Cascara Energy and CIAO Internet 

720 King Street West, Unit 317 

Toronto, Ontario M5V 3S5 

mark
Typewritten Text
9.1

mark
Typewritten Text



Letter of Interest Template 
 

Dear Selection Committee Members, 
 

Re: Letter of Interest – Improving Connectivity for Ontario (ICON) Program, with the Township of 
Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh, and CIAO Internet 
 
The Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh is pleased to provide this letter in support of CIAO 
Internet submission for improved connectivity in the rural area of the Township of Ashfield-Colborne-
Wawanosh. This project is expected to commence in 2021. 
 
This project will support rural residents by providing new fibre-optic based broadband internet services 
to residents who otherwise are disadvantaged in this regard. 
 
This project is important to our region to support ongoing economic development initiatives, support 
our agriculture business sector with business expansion and innovative improvements while they strive 
to be competitive in today’s environment. Successful completion will bring benefits to residents, 
business, visitors and the wider community as an attractive place to reside and conduct business. The 
COVID pandemic has placed added pressure on the need to work from home and ensure strong 
connectivity to compete in today’s marketplace. 
 
CIAO Internet is committed to the successful completion of this project. The the Township of Ashfield-
Colborne-Wawanosh will provide support to CIAO Internet in regards to infrastructure access and 
communications to support this project being realized. 
 
I may be contacted at [telephone number or email address] for any further information or questions. 
 
Sincerely,  
 
[Name] 
Mayor of the Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh 



PORT ALBERT & DISTRICT RECREATIONAL SOCIETY 

 

August 16, 2020 @ 1:00 pm at Christ Church, Port Albert 

 

MINUTES 

 

The meeting was called to order by Paul Doherty at 1:15 pm on August 16, 2020 at Christ Church, Port 

Albert. 

 

1. Roll Call of Committee Members  Paul Doherty, President 

Mark Ryan, Vice President 

Stuart Sharp, General Manager 

      Keith Doherty, Treasurer 

      Dot Ditner, Secretary  

      Kathy Westbrook 

Nancy Corkum       

    Regrets  Keith Doherty 

      Bill Vanstone, Counsellor, Township of ACW  

     

2. Approval of Agenda – Motion made by Nancy Corkum to accept the agenda as presented; 

Seconded by Mark Ryan; Carried 

 

3. Approval of Minutes - Motion made by Nancy to accept the minutes of September 4, 2019, 

November 2, 2019, and March 12, 2019; Seconded by Stuart Sharp; Carried 

 

4. Treasurer’s Report - Keith Doherty 

 

In Keith’s absence, Dot reported the following:  

• The June 30, 2020 year end bank balance was $72,519.25.  

• Steve Simpson’s invoice is still outstanding from the fall 2019 for the baseline fencing.   

• An invoice for the 2019 port-a-potties at the beaches is also outstanding. Keith is following 

up on this item with PACA. (This is a shared expense between PACA & PADRS) 

• $34,909.00 of the bank balance is designated for the playground equipment 

 

5. Old Business  

a) Donation board 

o Paul, Stuart & Dot met with Bob Mann, Graphics Designer (volunteer), to discuss the 

donation board 

o Based on the number of names and business logos, there will be two 4’x8’ boards with 

3mm white aluminum as the face of the sign which will be glued to the boards. The 

edges of the wood will be sealed to avoid weathering/rot.  

o Paul will donate the two ¾” 4’x8’ boards.  

o Bob now has the names and logos for the donation board. He is working on a draft for 

review.   

o The board will be installed high enough to allow for an additional 2’ add-on board at 

the bottom if needed.  

o Dot was asked to send the donator list to all executive to review and report back in the 

next couple of days if anyone noticed any missing names.  

mark
Typewritten Text
10.1

mark
Typewritten Text



2 | P a g e  

August 16, 2020 Minutes 

o Stuart knows of someone getting rid of big grey stones that could be landscaped 

around the base of the donation board, so mowing around the posts won’t be 

required.  

o 6x6 posts will be used  

o The donation board will be placed along the north west property line (along the green 

shed).  Along the hill was discussed, but the hill was used for tobogganing last winter 

and the committee agreed to keep that area clear for that purpose.   

  

b) Petrie Park Plaque  

o It was suggested that the Petrie Park plaque be put beside the donation board; 

however, after further discussion it was felt that having the plaque nearer to the 

playground might be a better option.  It was left for Paul and Stuart to decide when 

they go to put it up.   

 

c) Trees Plaques 

o Memorial plaques were ordered through McDougall Signs and have been picked up 

and installed.   

o A community member mentioned that there were caterpillar tents on the tree at the 

entrance. Paul has removed them.   

 

6. New Business 

a) Picnic table purchase for Petrie park  

o A discussion was held about purchasing 2 picnic tables to put at the playground area 

for parents while watching their kids play on the equipment.  

o Per Lloyd Haskell’s FB page, he charges $385 for 6’ and $425 for 8’. (He posted these 

prices August 5, 2020)  

o Agreed 8’ tables are preferred 

o Picnic tables were mentioned earlier, and we were thinking about asking for a $500 

donation.  This will probably cover the cost of the plaque but that’s not yet confirmed. 

o Kathy stated that she wanted to donate $1000 for 2 picnic tables (cheque received at 

the meeting). 

o Nancy also wants to donate $500 for a picnic table.  

o Stuart received payment for playing for a Celebration of Life and Paul received 

payment for renting his tent for a wedding. Combined they will donate the money to a 

picnic table from the “Port Albert Pipes & Drums”.  

o Nancy and Kathy will determine what they want their plaques to say.  

o Dot or Paul will contact Lloyd to order the tables. Paul will pick up since there are four, 

unless Lloyd will deliver for free. 

 

b) Picnic table campaign for 2021 

o It will be posted that our “goal” is 10 picnic tables for now. From today’s meeting, 

there are now 4 tables confirmed.   

o It will be advertised that we are looking for 6 more donations; first come, first served. 

o Plaques will have words only, no logos.  

o Placement of the donation plaque was discussed; either on the top with a routered 

inset, or on the frame. If placed on the frame, there will be less chance of scratching 

when the tables are piled.  Dot will check costs on both once the size on the frame is 

known.  



3 | P a g e  

August 16, 2020 Minutes 

o An outdoor, scratch-resistant two-ply plastic was recommended by McDougall Signs. 

Colour options were discussed, and blue/white was chosen as the colours match the 

ACW/Petrie Park sign.  

 

c) Annual Meeting of Membership – September 2020  

o After a discussion was held about having an annual meeting regarding the Covid-19 

pandemic and kids returning to school the week prior to the meeting date, Paul made 

a motion to not have the 2020 Annual Meeting in September. This motion was 

seconded by Dot and all members in attendance agreed; Carried.  

o In lieu of the meeting, an update will be created. An email will be sent to the 

membership informing them to refer to the update on our Facebook and Website and, 

hopefully, things will return to normal next year.  Dot will draft this. 

o Nancy offered to do a “Port Albert News” update for the Goderich Signal Star. Nancy to 

coordinate with Dot, and Kathy offered to take a picture of the park and playground 

equipment and send it to Nancy.  

o The Committee updated the by-laws this past winter which would normally be voted 

on by membership at the annual general meeting. However, since the meeting is not 

occurring, the amended by-laws will be in effect until the next Annual General Meeting 

of Membership; hopefully September 2021.  

o Another item discussed regarding the amended by-laws was having 2 volunteers to 

audit the financial records at year end.  We will contact a few resident candidates to 

see if they are interested in doing this (volunteer basis) for the year ending 2021. 

d) Review of expense submissions 

o Dot shared a document with Mark about how we need to submit expenses in the 

future so we have more itemized information for the financial statements. This was 

shared with Mark as he, Paul and Dot are the biggest submitters for expenses due to 

the BBQ and Ball Tournament.  

 

7. Other Business:  

a) Nancy asked that her bench at Christ Church be moved to Petrie Park.  She will email the Church 

Wardens (and cc Paul) that this is happening.  Once Paul receives the email, he and Stuart will 

move the bench.  

 

b) The Wes for Youth bench will be moved over to the playground area for seating. 

 

c) Kathy indicated that the entrance signs are likely on their last winter. Paul said that this was 

mentioned to Bob Mann.  These were provided by Arc-Tech in Seaforth.  Paul will check with 

Keith if he has the .jpeg file.  Nancy said she still has contact information on her computer for 

Arc-Tech & will look as well. If nothing is found through Keith or Nancy’s computer, Nancy will 

follow up with Arc-Tech to see if they have the jpeg file and can give it to her. After that, Stuart 

will take on the project.  

 

d) Kathy mentioned that cars speeding through Port Albert is a real concern with the new 

playground and increased use of the park. She wondered if signs, etc. might be put up. She 

would like a letter sent from PADRS to the Township of ACW regarding this. It might be 

recommended to put ‘slow down kids playing’ signs, or perhaps a solar ‘you’re speeding’ sign 

like in Carlow.  Kathy recently had an incident with their mailbox which was reported to the 

OPP.  Kathy said we could ask the Township to communicate with the OPP about this incident.  

We want to encourage the increasing young population to use the park, but we need to try to 

make it as safe as possible.  



4 | P a g e  

August 16, 2020 Minutes 

 

e) Donation Board Criteria – An email was received from Roberta Ireland (and was read to the 

Committee) in regard to getting ones name on the donation board.  She had visited 2 

playgrounds in Stratford and the Kincardine Hospital “And all of them recognize the board or 

committee as well as the donors”.  She was asking if it was possible to have the PADRS and 

Playground Committee mentioned with the members names on the board.   After considerable 

discussion, it was agreed that the positions on these committees are voluntary and should not 

require recognition; the work is done for the love and betterment of the community.  

Recognition on the board requires a monetary donation, or a donation of services/equipment/ 

supplies from a business.   

 

f) If funding is required in future, Kathy mentioned Lavis’ as Ed MacDonald lives in Port Albert.  

 

g) Next Meeting – October 4, 2020 @ 1:00 pm, Church Basement 

 

h) Motion to Adjourn made by Mark Ryan; seconded by Kathy Westbrook; Carried. 

 

Meeting Adjourned: 2:30 pm  



 

 

 

 

 

 

September 2020 Update 
 

The Executive Committee met on August 16, 2020, and although things have started opening during the Covid-19 

pandemic, the Executive voted not to hold the Annual General Meeting in September 2020.  In lieu of the meeting, this 

update is being provided.  If you have any questions or concerns regarding any items, please feel free to email 

portalbertrecsociety@gmail.com  

 
Reasons for Cancellation 

• The current Stage 3 guideline states that we “can fill up to 30% of the facility capacity”. The church basement capacity is 65, 

so 19 people could potentially attend. However, with having to keep 2 metres between each member, this would likely 

lessen the number of attendees even more.  

• School will have resumed for approximately one week by the meeting date and it will be unknown if the spread has 

increased.  It is not worth putting anyone at risk as there are no urgent issues.  

 

PLEASE NOTE: We will not be collecting 2020 membership dues and hope that things will resume to normal so a meeting 

can be held in September 2021.   

 

 

PETRIE PARK - Update since September 2019 Annual General Meeting  
 

1. FINANCIAL UPDATE 

Since this is being posted on our website and Facebook page, we are not attaching our July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2020 

Financial Statement. If you paid 2019 membership dues and wish to receive a copy of the financial statement, 

please send an email to portalbertrecsociety@gmail.com requesting a copy.   

Please Note: The Executive Committee will be reviewing the Financial Statements at our meeting on October 4, 2020 

and they will be available to the membership after that.   

 

2. BY-LAWS 

Over the winter months, prior to the Covid-19 outbreak, the Executive met to review and update the By-Laws which 

were created in 2010. The amended by-laws were passed by the Executive Committee and would normally have 

been presented and voted on by the membership at the Annual General Meeting in 2020.  The amended by-laws will 

be in effect until voted on at the next annual meeting; hopefully September 2021.  If you paid 2019 membership 

dues and wish to receive a copy of the amended By-laws, please send an email to portalbertrecsociety@gmail.com 

requesting the same.  

 

3. APPRECIATION 

• A huge thank you to the Playground Committee - Rob & Roberta Ireland, and all the volunteers who helped 

with prepping the site and installation of the playground equipment and basketball court.    

• Thanks to all the volunteers who have donated their time at Petrie Park; especially Taylor Cicchini who has 

mowed the park probably 99% of the time this summer; and Kathy Westbrook and Lynn Ryan who maintain 

the entrance flowerbeds.   

• Thanks to the volunteers who weed wacked the hill. 

• Thanks to Bill Wraith for continuing to mow the grass at the cairn location.  

 

  

www.portalbertrecsociety.ca portalbertrecsociety@gmail.com 

mark
Typewritten Text
10.2

mark
Typewritten Text



 

2 

 

 

4. PLANS FOR THE PARK – Present & Future 

 

Present 

• Annual Beef BBQ & Parade to the Beach – Sadly this didn’t happen, but we look forward to 2021 with the 

same planned theme of “Rednecks” with families encouraged to put a small float in the parade to try to win a 

prize. The date for 2021 will be Sunday, August 1st.   

• Ball Tournament – Another event that didn’t happen.   The date for this event in 2021 will be Friday, August 

20th to 22nd.   
 

At the ball tournament in August 2019 and at the General Annual Meeting in September, people were asked 

for suggestions of a new name for the tournament as it had been 9 years since the last one in 2010.  Based 

on the responses received, the name will remain as the Quincy Tournament.     

 

Future 

 

Phase I – Update since September 2019 Annual General Meeting  

• The playground plan submitted to ACW Township was approved as per the Township By-Law 52-2019 being 

the Policy for New Playground Equipment on Municipal Lands.  

• The plan was also reviewed by the Huron County Accessibility Advisory Committee.   

• Our request to township for a contribution to the playground was approved in the amount of $4000.00 in 

addition to staff time for site preparation.  

• The 5 trees donated by Linda Cozyn were planted fall 2019 and memorial plaques were installed in August 

2020. 

• The ACW/Petrie Park sign was installed by the township.  

 

Phase II - Update since September 2019 Annual General Meeting  

• The playground equipment and basketball court have been installed and is being used “at own risk” due to 

Covid-19. There are lots of kids and families using the park.  

• The Petrie Park plaque will be placed near the playground on the north east side. 

• Information for the donation board is now in the hands of the graphics designer.  The board will be installed 

along the north east property line by the playground. We hope to have this installed late fall 2020.  Due to 

the number of names on it, we anticipate that it will be 4’ x 16’. We will be able to add on as needed in the 

future.   

• The goal is to have ten 8’ aluminum-framed picnic tables at the park. These will be much lighter to move 

when required.  

• At this time, there are four tables at the park and the remaining six will be ordered to arrive for summer 

2021.   These tables have been purchased by donations received specifically for picnic tables, and donation 

plaques for the tables are being researched now. 

• The driveway going into the park will be extended to the south west corner with a stone & chip surface.  This 

can be used for vehicles coming to cater an event, or trucks and trailers dropping off and picking up 

additional picnic tables.  

• From the south west corner, a walking trail will be put in along the tree line with a few benches placed along 

the trail. The surface will be smooth enough for wheelchairs, walkers, strollers, etc. 

• Further excavating work will be done at the playground area to adhere to the accessibility component. 

 

  



 

3 

 

Phase III – Update since September 2019 Annual General Meeting 

• Storage shed 

• Lawnmower for volunteers to use at the park 

• Pavilion 

• Hydro 

• Water 

 

5. NEW ITEMS 

• The Executive Committee has received a request to rent Petrie Park for a wedding in 2022.    We’re working 

with the Township on this. The Township gets the rental fee and the contract says that the renters are 

responsible for cleanup; however, we need to make sure that if we need to do any clean up or repair of 

damage (i.e., someone backs into the base fencing) that we can bill someone for it. There is no financial 

benefit for us to rent the park out and the community would not be able to use it while the private event is 

going on.    

• A letter has been sent to the Township requesting that some sort of a sign be installed along Melbourne to 

help deter speeding.  With the increased use of Petrie Park, this has become a bigger concern with the 

younger population walking and biking to the park.   

 

The Committee feels that our goal to make Petrie Park a community hub for residents, cottagers and visitors is well on its 

way.  This could not have been accomplished without all the donations and volunteers.  Thank you!  

 

If you have any questions, please email the Committee at portalbertrecsociety@gmail.com  

 

Sincerely,  

The Port Albert & District Recreational Society Inc. Executive Committee 

Paul Doherty, President 

Mark Ryan, Vice-President 

Stuart Sharp, General Manager 

Keith Doherty, Treasurer 

Dot Ditner, Secretary 

Kathy Westbrook, Member at Large 

Nancy Corkum, Member at Large 

Bill Vanstone, Counsellor, Township of ACW  

  



 

The Corporation of the Township of Huron-Kinloss 
P.O. Box 130 
21 Queen St. 
Ripley, Ontario 
N0G2R0 

Phone: (519) 395-3735 
Fax: (519) 395-4107 

 
E-mail: info@huronkinloss.com 

Website: http://www.huronkinloss.com  
 
Honourable Doug Ford, Premier of Ontario,                              August 17, 2020 
Queen’s Park Legislative Building 
1 Queen’s Park, Room 281 
Toronto, ON M7A 1A1 
 

 
Dear Honourable Doug Ford; 
 
Re: Copy of Resolution #485 
 
Motion No. 485 
Moved by: Don Murray    Seconded by: Carl Sloetjes 
 
THAT the Township of Huron-Kinloss hereby support the Council of the Township of 
Mapleton in their request that: The Province of Ontario undertake a review of the Farm 
Property Tax Class Rate Program to determine: 
 
a. The appropriateness of the cost of the Farm Property Tax Class Rate Program falling 
disproportionately amongst rural residential and business property owners when the 
benefit of an economically competitive agricultural industry and affordable food and 
agricultural products is a provincial objective that should be shared amongst all 
taxpayers in Ontario; 
 
b. The adequacy of funding being provided to rural municipalities to offset the cost of 
the Farm Property Tax Class Rate Program; 
 
c. The differences between the amount of property taxes paid in rural and urban 
municipalities and the root causes of those differences; 
 
d. Economic competitiveness concerns with disproportionately higher average property 
taxes being paid in rural municipalities; 
 
e. Other methods of delivering the farm tax rebate program to farmland owners where 
the cost can be shared province wide 
 

 

mailto:info@huronkinloss.com
mark
Typewritten Text
10.3

mark
Typewritten Text



 

 
Sincerely, 

 

 

Kelly Lush 
Deputy Clerk 
 
 
c.c  Honourable Steve Clark, Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing, Honourable Rod Phillips, 
Minister of Finance, Honourable Ernie Hardeman, Minister of Agriculture, Food & Rural Affairs, 
MPP Randy Pettapiece, Honourable Ted Arnott, all Ontario Municipalities, Rural Ontario 
Municipal Association (ROMA) and Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO). 



Page 1 of 2 
Lucknow and District Fire Board – Minutes of June 18, 2020 

 

Lucknow and District Fire Board 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

June 18, 2020 

Minutes 
 

The Lucknow and District Fire Board met on June 18, 2020 at 7:00 pm through Zoom, an online 

video conferencing platform.   

 

This meeting was held electronically due to the provincial emergency declared in response to the 

Novel Coronavirus pandemic. Boards are permitted to continue to conduct business remotely 

during this time.  

 

Members Present: 

Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh  Bill Vanstone 

Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh  Gloria Fisher 

Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh  Glen McNeil 

Township of Huron-Kinloss    Don Murray 

Township of Huron-Kinloss    Ed McGugan (alternate) 

Township of Huron-Kinloss     Carl Sloetjes 

 

Staff and Others Present: 

Board Secretary     Florence Witherspoon 

 

1. Call to Order 

Chair Don Murray called the meeting to order. 

 

2. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest 

None declared.  

 

3. Adoption of Previous Minutes  

 

Resolution 

No. 1  

Moved by: Glen McNeil 

Seconded by: Bill Vanstone 

THAT the minutes dated April 23, 2020 of the Lucknow and District Fire Board 

be adopted as circulated. 

 CARRIED 

4. Business Arising from the Minutes 

None.  

 

5. Closed Session 

 

Resolution 

No. 2 

Moved by: Glen McNeil 

Seconded by: Ed McGugan 

THAT the Lucknow and District Fire Board move into Closed Session, in 

accordance with Section 239 of the Municipal Act, 2001, with the Secretary 

Florence Witherspoon, remaining in attendance at 7:08 pm for the purposes 

of the discussing: 

 

 1. Matters of Negotiation 

 

 

CARRIED 

 

mark
Typewritten Text
10.4

mark
Typewritten Text



Page 2 of 2 
Lucknow and District Fire Board – Minutes of June 18, 2020 

Resolution 

No. 3 

Moved by: Ed McGugan 

Seconded by: Carl Sloetjes 

THAT the Lucknow and District Fire Board reconvene into Open Session at 7:45 

pm. 

 CARRIED 

 

6. Business Arising from Closed Session 

The Board directed to the Committee tasked at determining the process to replace the Fire 

Chief to continue negotiations and bring back a recommendation on a moving forward for 

consideration.  

 

7. New Business  

None.  

 

8. Next Meeting 

July 23, 2020 at 7:00 pm or at the call of the Chair.  

 

9. Adjournment   

 

Resolution 

No. 4 

Moved by: Bill Vanstone 

Seconded by: Glen McNeil 

THAT the Lucknow and District Fire Board adjourn at 7:50 pm to reconvene on 

July 23, 2020 or at the call of the Chair.  

 CARRIED 

 

 

 

ORIGINAL SIGNED BY 

___________________________ 

Chair, Don Murray 

 

ORIGINAL SIGNED BY 

___________________________ 

Secretary, Florence Witherspoon 



Page 1 of 2 
Lucknow and District Fire Board – Minutes of August 20, 2020 

 

Lucknow and District Fire Board 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

August 20, 2020 

Minutes 
 

The Lucknow and District Fire Board met on August 20, 2020 at 7:00 pm through Zoom, an online 

video conferencing platform.   

 

Members Present: 

Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh  Bill Vanstone 

Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh  Gloria Fisher 

Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh  Glen McNeil 

Township of Huron-Kinloss    Don Murray 

Township of Huron-Kinloss    Jim Hanna 

Township of Huron-Kinloss     Carl Sloetjes 

 

Staff and Others Present: 

Board Secretary     Florence Witherspoon 

Fire Chief       Peter Steer 

Deputy Fire Chief     Clint Hamilton 

Secretary      Steve Bushell 

 

1. Call to Order 

Chair Don Murray called the meeting to order. 

 

2. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest 

None declared.  

 

3. Adoption of Previous Minutes  

 

Resolution 

No. 1  

Moved by:  Bill Vanstone 

Seconded by: Gloria Fisher 

THAT the minutes dated June 18, 2020 of the Lucknow and District Fire Board 

be adopted as circulated. 

 CARRIED 

4. Business Arising from the Minutes 

None.  

 

5. Report from Fire Chief Steer 

The Board reviewed the August 2020 Interim Activity Report prepared by Fire Chief Steer.  

 

6. Budget to Actual Report 

The Board reviewed the Actual vs. Budget Statement from January to August 17, 2020. 

 

7. Fire Department Policies - Standard Operating Guidelines 

The Lucknow Fire Department provided the current Standard Operating Guidelines with 12 

Sections in total. Section 11: Occupational Health, Safety and Wellness was reviewed by the 

Board.  

 

Resolution 

No. 2 

Moved by: Jim Hanna 

Seconded by: Carl Sloetjes 



Page 2 of 2 
Lucknow and District Fire Board – Minutes of August 20, 2020 

THAT the Lucknow and District Fire Board receive the updated Standard 

Operated Guidelines, including Section 11. 

 CARRIED 

 

8. Closed Session 

 

Resolution 

No. 3 

Moved by: Glen McNeil 

Seconded by: Bill Vanstone 

THAT the Lucknow and District Fire Board move into Closed Session, in 

accordance with Section 239 of the Municipal Act, 2001, with the Secretary 

Florence Witherspoon, remaining in attendance at 7:05 pm for the purposes 

of the discussing: 

 

 1. Matters of Negotiation 

 

 

Resolution 

No. 4 

CARRIED 

 

Moved by: Carl Sloetjes 

Seconded by: Bill Vanstone 

THAT the Lucknow and District Fire Board reconvene into Open Session at 7:45 

pm. 

 CARRIED 

 

9. Business Arising from Closed Session 

None. 

 

10. New Business  

Chair Don Murray requested at members of ACW Council support the Huron-Kinloss 

resolution supporting the trucking industry.  

 

11. Next Meeting 

September 17, 2020 at 7:00 pm or at the call of the Chair.  

 

12. Adjournment   

 

Resolution 

No. 5 

Moved by:  

Seconded by:  

THAT the Lucknow and District Fire Board adjourn at 7:50 pm. 

 CARRIED 

 

 

 

ORIGINAL SIGNED BY 

___________________________ 

Chair, Don Murray 

 

ORIGINAL SIGNED BY 

___________________________ 

Secretary, Florence Witherspoon 



 

 
 

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF 

ASHFIELD-COLBORNE-WAWANOSH 

 

BY-LAW NUMBER 55-2020 

 

BEING A BY-LAW TO CONFIRM THE PROCEEDINGS OF THE 

CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF ASHFIELD-COLBORNE-WAWANOSH  

AT ITS MEETING HELD ON SEPTEMBER 1, 2020. 

             

 

     WHEREAS by the Municipal Act, 2001 the powers of a municipal corporation are to 

     be exercised by its Council; 

 

     AND WHEREAS by the Municipal Act, 2001, the powers of every Council are to  

     be exercised by its by-laws; 

 

  AND WHEREAS it is deemed expedient that the proceedings of the Council of  

  The Corporation of the Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh at its meeting be  

  confirmed and adopted by by-law; 

 

 NOW THEREFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE CORPORATION OF THE  

 TOWNSHIP OF ASHFIELD-COLBORNE-WAWANOSH ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 

 

    1. The action of the Council of The Corporation of the Township of Ashfield-Colborne-

Wawanosh at its meeting held on the 1st day of September in respect to each motion and 

resolution passed, and other action taken by the Council of The Corporation of the 

Township of Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh at its meeting, is hereby adopted and 

confirmed as if all such proceedings were expressly embodied in this by-law. 

 

    2. The Mayor and Clerk are authorized and directed to do all the things necessary to give 

effect to the action of the Council of The Corporation of the Township of Ashfield-

Colborne-Wawanosh referred to in the preceding section hereof. 

 

    3. The Mayor and the Clerk are authorized and directed to execute all documents necessary 

in that behalf and to affix thereto the seal of The Corporation of the Township of 

Ashfield-Colborne-Wawanosh.   

 

 

 

     Read a FIRST and SECOND time this 1st day of September, 2020. 

 

 

 

     Read a THIRD TIME and FINALLY PASSED this 1st day of September, 2020. 

 

 

 

 

      ________________________________________ 

      Mayor, Glen McNeil 

 

 

 

      ________________________________________ 

      CAO/Deputy-Clerk, Mark Becker 

mark
Typewritten Text
14.6

mark
Typewritten Text


	AGENDA
	3.1 - Minutes
	5.1 (A) - Otten Zoning 
	5.1 (B) - Andersons Zoning
	5.2 - Andersons Consent
	5.3 - Quinlan Minor Variance
	7.1.1 - Veolia Water Report 
	7.1.2 - Benmiller Drinking Water Report
	7.1.3 - Dungannon Arsenic Treatment
	7.2.1 - Wilkins Blake Heritage Farms Dwelling
	7.4.1 - Warren Zinn Drain Tenders
	7.4.2 - Warren Zinn Drain Court of Revision
	7.4.3 - Warren Zinn Drain Final Reading By-Law
	7.5.1 - Facility Operator / Parks Maintainer
	7.5.2 - Enabling Accessiblity Fund
	7.6.1 - Public Works Activity Report
	8.1 - Safe Start Agreement 
	8.2 (a) St Helens Cenotaph
	8.2 (b) St Helens Playground Equipment
	9.1 - CIAO Internet
	10.1 - Petrie Park Minutes
	10.2 - Petrie Park Update
	10.3 - Huron-Kinloss Farm Tax Class
	10.4 - Lucknow Fire Board Minutes
	14.1 - Facility Operator Parks Maintainer By-Law
	14.2 - Otten Zoning By-Law 
	14.3 - Anderson Zoning By-Law
	14.4 - Wilkins Blake Heritage Farms Dwelling By-Law
	14.5 - Warren Zinn Drain By-Law
	14.6 - Confirmation By-Law



